Public Document Pack
Please Contact

Alan Bardet

Extension

43208

Date of Publication

22 September 2021

E Mail

alan.bardet@ryedale.gov.uk

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Thursday 30 September 2021 at 6.30 pm
Council Chamber - Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire YO17 7HH

Agenda
1

Emergency Evacuation Procedure
The Chairman to inform Members of the Public of the emergency evacuation
procedure.

2

Apologies for absence

3

Minutes of the meeting held on 28 July 2021

4

Urgent Business

(Pages 3 - 6)

To receive notice of any urgent business which the Chairman considers should be
dealt with at the meeting as a matter of urgency by virtue of Section 100B(4)(b) of
the Local Government Act 1972.

5

Declarations of Interest
Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests under the Code of
Conduct.
Members making a declaration of interest at a meeting of a Committee or Council
are required to disclose the existence and nature of that interest. This requirement is
not discharged by merely declaring a personal interest without further explanation.

6

Customer Complaints and Compliments Q1 2021/22

7

Risk Management Update

(Pages 19 - 54)

8

Revised Equalities Scheme

(Pages 55 - 82)

Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7HH
Tel: 01653 600666
www.ryedale.gov.uk

(Pages 7 - 18)

9

Progress Report on the Implementation of the Climate Change Action Plan and
Associated Projects
(Pages 83 - 96)

10

LGO Annual Review Letter 2020/21

11

Review of Workplan

12

Membership of Task Groups

13

Decisions from other Committees

(Pages 97 - 106)
(Pages 107 - 110)

(Pages 111 - 116)

Policy and Resources Committee held on 29 July 2021
Minutes from Policy and Resources Committee held on 23 September 2021 to
follow.

14

Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.

Agenda Item 3
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Held at Council Chamber - Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire YO17 7HH
on Wednesday 28 July 2021
Present
Councillors Bailey, King, Middleton (Chairman), Oxley, Riby and Wass (Vice-Chairman)
In Attendance
Alan Bardet, Jon Bird (Everyone Active), Simon Copley, Jonathan Dodsworth, Anton Hodge,
Martin Miles (Everyone Active), Gareth Mills, Phillip Spurr, Amy Thomas, Margaret Wallace and
Louise Wood
Minutes

11

Apologies for absence

Apologies were received from Cllrs Cussons, Garbutt-Moore, Raine and Raper.
12

Minutes of the meeting held on 10 June 2021
Decision
That the minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Meeting held on 10 June
2021 be approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

13

Urgent Business

There was no urgent business.
14

Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.
15

Chair's Announcements

There were no announcements from the Chair.
16

Everyone Active Annual Report

The Committee received the Annual report from Everyone Active.
17

Annual Health and Safety Report

Considered – The report of the Head of Communications, Technologies and
Business Transformation.
Decision
That the Customer Annual Health and Safety Report be received and noted.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

1

Page 3

Wednesday 28 July 2021

Voting Record
Unanimous
18

Draft Annual Governance Statement

Considered – The report of the Chief Finance Officer
Decision
That the Draft Annual Governance Statement be received and noted.
Voting Record
Unanimous
19

External Audit-Update

The Committee received the External Audit Update.
20

Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Annual Report 2020-21

Considered – The Report of the Chief Financial Officer
Decision
That the Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Annual Report 2020-21 be received
and noted.
Voting Record
Unanimous
21

Internal Audit Work Programme 2021-22

Considered – The Report of the Chief Finance Officer
Decision
That the Internal Audit Work Programme 2021-22 be received and noted.
Voting Record
Unanimous
22

Treasury Management Annual Report 2020/21

Considered – The Report of the Chief Finance Officer
Decision
That the Treasury Management Annual Report 2020 be received and noted.
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

2

Page 4

Wednesday 28 July 2021

Voting Record
Unanimous
23

Scrutiny Reviews Progress Report and Identification of Future Topics

Considered – The report of the Head of Corporate Governance
Decision
That the Scrutiny Reviews Progress Report and Identification of Future Topics
be received and noted.
That it be agreed that the order in which the areas are to be scrutinised and the
provisional membership of each Task Group are as follows:
Performance Appraisals – Cllrs Bailey, King, Oxley and Riby
Affordable Housing – Cllrs Middleton and Wass,
Civil Enforcement – Cllrs Garbutt-Moore
Additional membership to be agreed with Members absent.
Voting Record
Unanimous
24

Decisions from other Committees

The Committee received the Minutes of the Policy and Resources Committee
held on 29 June 2021.
25

O&S Forward Plan

The Committee received the Overview & Scrutiny Forward Plan.
26

Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.

There being no other business, the meeting closed at 20:40

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

3

Page 5

Wednesday 28 July 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6

PART A:

MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

REPORT TO:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE:

30 SEPTEMBER 2021

REPORT OF THE:

HEAD OF CUSTOMER SERVICES AND COMMUNITIES
MARGARET WALLACE

TITLE OF REPORT:

CUSTOMER COMPLAINTS AND COMPLIMENTS Q1 2021/22

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To provide an update on the customer complaints and compliments received in
2021/22 to the end of the quarter 1 reporting period on 30th June 2021.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended to:
(i)

Note and endorse the continued good performance of complaints and
compliments received in the first quarter of 2021/22 of the reporting cycle.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

To monitor the numbers of complaints and compliments received, the topics of
complaints and recommend service improvements in line with data analysis to provide
customer excellence.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

Potential reputational damage from upheld decision notices following investigation by
the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman into customer complaints.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 7

30 SEPTEMBER 2021

5.1

Our Organisation, an Innovative, Enterprising Council- Accessible to all.
We will transform our customer services, using new ways of working to improve our
responsiveness. We will support those who are digitally excluded or need support to
access online services. We will bring partners into Ryedale House and provide options
for a “one-stop” Public Services Hub. We will tackle inequality. Delivering better
equality across the district is central to everything we do, and we are committed to
doing all we can to be a welcoming and inclusive place characterised by diversity. We
will improve our engagement with you, asking for your views, and using your feedback

6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

The customer complaints and compliments received form an important part of the
feedback process for the Council to learn from any issues raised and improve how we
deliver our services, to provide a better standard of service that is more responsive to
people’s needs. When analysing the customer complaints and compliments, they
should be read in conjunction with each other to gain a full picture of the feedback
received.

COMPLAINTS
6.2

A complaint is defined within the Council as “an expression of dissatisfaction about our
action or lack of action, or about the standard of service provided by us or on our
behalf”.

6.3

The Council operates a 2 stage complaints procedure to respond to the issues raised
by complainants. At stage 1 we will acknowledge the submission of the complaint
within 1 working day, details of the named officer dealing with the complaint and
outlining the timescales for response. At stage 1 it is hoped that we have frontline
resolution within ten working days. However, if the issue is complex and we cannot
resolve within the 10 working days, we will contact the complaint or their representative
to explain the reason for an extension.

6.4

If the complainant is not satisfied with the response, they receive about their stage 1
complaint, then they can request a stage 2 investigation. We will acknowledge the
submission of their stage 2 complaint within one working day. Stage 2 deals with two
types of complaints: Those that have not been resolved at stage 1 and those that are
complex and require detailed investigation. Stage 2 complaints will be investigated by
a senior manager. After this investigation, the senior manager will provide a full
response to the complainant as soon as possible, and within 20 working days.

6.5

If the complainant is not satisfied with the stage 2 response, there is the option for the
complainant to escalate to the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman if they
remain dissatisfied. The Ombudsman is a free and impartial service but will generally
only consider complaints that have been through the internal 2 stage process at the
Council first.

6.6

In Quarter one the council has handled 14 corporate complaints from 1 April to 30 June
2021. 12 complaints were dealt with under stage 1 of the complaints procedure with 2

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 8

30 SEPTEMBER 2021

complainants remaining dissatisfied at stage 1 and advancing on to stage 2. The
majority of the complaints, 12 (86%), did not escalate beyond an initial complaint
(stage1) and were answered within the complaint’s procedural timescales, showing
that responses to corporate complaints have been dealt with effectively and efficiently
to address any issues raised.
6.7

There was one complaint received in Quarter 1 that required the stage 1 complaint
timescales to be extended due to the complexity of the complaint and with agreement
from the complainant. There was only 1 complaint that did not meet the timescale set
within the stage 1 complaint’s procedure and, the complaint was overdue by 1 day. All
stage 2 complaints were answered within the procedural timescles. A detailed analysis
of the breakdown of complaint topics, timescales and outcomes are attached
(Appendix 1)

6.8

The analysis of the complaints received highlights that the majority of complaints
received within quarter 1 were not upheld as council procedures had been followed.
However, complaints are an important part of the feedback process for the Council to
learn from any issues raised and improve how we deliver our services, to provide a
better standard of service that is more responsive to people’s needs. As a result of
some of the complaints raised services have made additional service improvements
for example providing additional information on the RDC website to help assist those
with funding applications.

6.9

The analysis also highlights some areas where we have failed to provide customer
excellence and were this has happened, we have apologised and made service
improvements to address the areas of concern. For example, delay in taking
enforcement action due to a delay in recruiting an enforcement officer. We have
apologised for this delay and taken the action required.

6.10

The learning and actions resulting from complaints are an important element of
customer feedback reporting and improving services. Understanding the causes of
complaints and common themes inform learning and the identification of actions to
address the underlying causes of the complaint being made. To ensure we continue to
improve our services; customer service complaints officers will continue to work with
the service to ensure high quality of response to complaints received. The officers will
work with services to ensure timescales for complaints are met. They will also work
with service departments to achieve service improvements to mitigate further
complaints.

COMPLIMENTS
6.11

When analysing the customer complaints, it is important that this is done in conjunction
with our compliments received for quarter 1 to provide a full picture of our customer
feedback. The number of service compliments recorded in the 2021/22 Quarter 1
period up to 30th June 2021 is 14. The main topics of the compliments received by
citizens and local business owners once again relate to appreciation of the council’s
support during the COVID-19 pandemic

6.12

Examples of some of the compliments from April to June 2021 include:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 9

30 SEPTEMBER 2021

“We are so delighted that RDC can help us – this grant will make such a difference
to us in terms of navigating our way through the next few months and, hopefully,
surviving. I am incredibly grateful to you for the conversation we had last week”
“The ingenuity and proactiveness of Ryedale District Council saved the day, saved
our business and saved our team's jobs last Christmas.”
“Thank you so much, I must say the Ryedale Council have been amazing during the
Covid-19 outbreak and have supported us amazingly. “
“I realise how difficult the whole scenario of covid 19 has been, especially for local
authorities. I appreciate the speed your department has passed on the Government
grants and would like to thank you for the service we have received during these
unprecedented times.”
“I confirm receipt of your email and the decision notice. I also wish to thank Ryedale
Planning and the case officer for the efficient manner in which this application has
been handled within the statutory time period”

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
Costs are contained within the agreed budgets for the service.
b)

Legal
No complaints required to be escalated to Legal services for advice in quarter 1

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)

Margaret Wallace
Head of Customer Services and Communities

Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Jenny Knowles, Customer Services Manager
01653 600666 ext: 43231
jenny.knowles@ryedale.gov.uk

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 10

30 SEPTEMBER 2021

Background Papers:
None
Background Papers are available for inspection at:
None

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 11

30 SEPTEMBER 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 1

Quarter One Corporate Complaints Report

Author
Version
Status
Date

Jade Hutchinson
3
Final
08/09/2021

Page 13

1

The report below provides an overview of the corporate complaints received in quarter one
from 1 April 2021 to 30 June 2021. Within this period 14 complaints were received. The
report is broken down into two sections. An overview of all the complaints received during
this time period, and timescale for response, followed by an overview of the complaint’s
issues raised by complainants.
OVERVIEW OF ALL COMPLAINTS
Throughout the period of April 2021 – June 2021, 14 corporate complaints were recorded.
Total Complaints
Complaints received By Month
6
5

5

May-21

Jun-21

Number Of Complaints

5
4
4
3
2
1
0
Apr-21

Complaint Stages
Throughout quarter one, only 2 complaints out of the 14 received were escalated to a formal
complaint (Stage 2). The majority of complaints, 12 (86%), did not escalate beyond an initial
complaint (Stage 1).
Please note the month that the complaint stage is logged in is based on the date the initial
complaint was received, it will not be the month that the complaint was raised to a formal
complaint.

Complaint Stage
(Total Quarter
Figure)
Stage One (12)

Stages Of Complaints
6

Number Of Complaints

5

5

5
4

Stage Two (2)

3
2

Complaint
escalated to
Ombudsman (0)

2

2
1
0
Apr-21

May-21

Page 14

Jun-21

2

Timescales
Stage 1 Complaint Timescales
Within the period of April 2021 – June 2021, only one Stage 1 complaint did not meet the
timescale set, the complaint was overdue by 1 day. For one complaint received in quarter
one, an extension of 10 days was agreed with the complainant due to the complexity of the
request and further investigations required, the response was sent by the agreed extension
date.
Stage One Complaint Timescale

Timescale
(Total Quarter
Figure)

5

Number Of Complaints

4

4

Timescale Met
(12)

4

4

Overdue (1)

3
2
1

1

Extension
Timescale Met
(1)

1
0

0
Apr-21

May-21

Jun-21

Stage Two Complaint Timescales
Within the period of April 2021 – June 2021, 2 complaints were escalated to Stage 2 of the
Complaints Procedure. The month in the graphs below are for when notification was received
from the complainant and the formal complaint was opened.
Stage Two Complaint Timescale

Number Of Complaints

3

Timescale
(Total Quarter
Figure)
Timescale Met
(2)

2

2

Overdue

Extension
Timescale Met

1

0
Apr-21

May-21

Page 15

Jun-21

3

Topic of Complaints
Below is a graph which breaks down the complaints into categories based upon the topic of
the complaint.

Complaints By Type

Number Of Complaints

3

2
2

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

0

Number Of Complaints

Complaints By Type

Repeated request for bins
Toilets

6

Exceptional Hardship Fund

5

Business Rates

1

1

4

Failure Notice
Delay / no response

1

1

3

2

Not received a letter
Planning pre application

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Apr-21

May-21

Jun-21

2

Planning application

1
0

Covid
Car Parks - Parking
Subject Access Request

Page 16

Noise Pollution

4

COMPLAINTS OVERVIEW
The table below provides and overview of the topics of the complaints received, timescales
met in accordance with our complaint’s procedure, outcomes, and service improvements.
Date

Title Of Complaint

Stage Title

Outcomes

01/04/2021

Failure Notice

Stage 2

08/04/2021

Repeated requests
for new refuse bins

Stage 1

13/04/2021

Business Rates

Stage 1

Stage 2 complaint timescale metinvestigation showed all procedures
had been met.
Stage 1 complaint timescale met investigation showed a delay had
occurred and an apology given.
Service improvements being
implemented.
Stage 1 complaint timescale metinvestigation showed all procedures
had been met.

26/04/2021

Noise Pollution-

Stage 2

04/05/2021

Contact with the
Council on preapplication advice
Council Tax
Complaint Exceptional
Hardship Fund

Stage 1

05/05/2021

Claim from Covid
Fund, Charity or
Grant

Stage 1

05/05/2021

Planning
Application

Stage 1

20/05/2021

non receipt of
neighbour letter

Stage 1

07/06/2021

Delay in resolving
an enforcement
issue

Stage 1

14/06/2021

Ignored planning
issues

Stage 1

14/06/2021

Ropery Toilets at
Pickering

Stage 1

04/05/2021

Stage 1

Page 17

stage 2 timescales met- investigation
undertaken, full response provided, all
procedures followed.
Stage 1 timescale missed by one day.
Investigation showed that all
procedures had been followed.
Stage 1 Complaint timescale metinvestigation showed all procedures
followed. The service did provide
further assistance to the complainant.
Following feedback, the service is
providing a more holistic approach to
applications.
Stage 1 timescale met- investigation
confirmed service procedures were
followed. Following the feedback, the
Service added further information
regarding the fund on RDC website.
Stage 1 timescale met- investigation
showed all procedures were followed
and service timescales met.
Stage 1 timescale met- investigation
showed all procedures were followed
and letters sent.
Stage 1 timescale met- investigation
showed that there had been a delay,
apology given to complainant. Service
had been in the process of recruiting a
new enforcement officer. Action taken
upon appointment.
Stage 1 complaint request for an
extension in timescale to respond due
to the complexity of the complaint.
extension timescale met and
response given with follow up actions
agreed with complainant.
Stage 1 complaint timescale metinvestigation identified that a
programme of Improvement works are
being undertaken with all public toilets

5

24/06/2021

Subject Access
Request-

Stage 1

28/06/2021

Motorcycle Parking
– Helmsley

Stage 1

Page 18

in Ryedale and due to be finished later
in the year, the complainant was
updated
Stage 1 complaint timescale metInvestigation identified complaint
upheld and an apology given to
complainant. Service improvement to
update subject access procedures.
Stage 1 complaint timescale metinvestigation identified procedures
followed, customer feedback will be
fed into parking strategy

6

Agenda Item 7

PART A:

MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

REPORT TO:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE:

30 SEPTEMBER 2021

REPORT OF THE:

HEAD OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
SIMON COPLEY

TITLE OF REPORT:

UPDATE ON RISK MANAGEMENT

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

This report provides an update on work to review and revise the Council’s Corporate
Risk Register, attached at Appendix 1.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that the Committee notes the contents of this report and comments
on the format and details of the Corporate Risk Register.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

This report provides an update on work to revise and review the Corporate Risk
Register. Risk Management has been highlighted as a key improvement issue in recent
years, and this paper is evidence of improvements made in the process and reporting
to members.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

The risk of not managing corporate risks are as identified in the register.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The authority has a duty to manage risk.

5.2

Significantly more risk has been introduced into the system as a consequence of local
government reorganisation, which is currently being assessed. This may affect
subsequent iterations of the risk register, and risk ratings.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 19

30 SEPTEMBER 2021

6.0

BACKGROUND AND INTRODUCTION
Introduction

6.1

A revised approach to managing risk has been adopted in recent years. This has led
to an overhaul of the Corporate Risk Register. Advice and guidance has been provided
by Veritau and in some cases by North Yorkshire County Council.

6.2

This work has been recognised and endorsed by members who see it as an important
part of the Council’s improvement strategy. As part of that, an update on Risk
Management, including the Corporate Risk Register, will be presented to Audit
Committee twice a year.

6.3

The updating of the Corporate Risk Register over the past year has demonstrated the
Council’s improvement journey, showing how risks are being managed and generally
downgraded over that period. However Risk Management is an ongoing process and
the papers presented here will continue to be updated.

6.4

The Corporate Risk Register is a key strategic document setting out the medium to
long term goals and objectives of the Council and the associated risks. The register is
a live document and is updated on a regular basis to set out the controls and mitigations
in place to control identified risks.

6.5

To assist with consideration of the register, Members are reminded that the current
scoring matrix is defined as below:

6.6

Each risk has two elements: the probability of the event occurring (likelihood) and the
consequence if it does occur (impact).

6.7

The Council uses a 5x5 matrix which means that there are five levels of likelihood
(very low, not likely, likely, very likely and almost certain) and five levels of impact
(low, minor, medium, major and disaster). The intersection of the likelihood and
impact of a specific risk on the matrix will decide its score and, in turn, the
requirements for its management. This is known as ‘risk analysis’ and is the
quantitative element of the risk assessment process which takes place following risk
identification.

6.8

The aim of risk analysis is to estimate the likelihood and impact of the risk on three
different levels. The first level is the original risk (also known as the ‘gross risk’ or the

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 20

30 SEPTEMBER 2021

‘inherent risk’). This is an estimation of the impact and likelihood of the risk before
the effects of any controls that have been put in place are taken into account. The
significance of this score is that it provides clear indication as to whether or not the
risk has the potential to have a disastrous impact on the Council. Equally importantly,
if not more so, is that the score enables an assessment of the importance of the
controls acting on the risk. A control is any preventative / proactive (i.e. help to
reduce the likelihood of the event) or mitigating / reactive (i.e. help to reduce the
impact of the consequences of the event) measure that is put in place to reduce the
likelihood and/or impact of the risk.
6.9

The second level is the current risk (also known as the ‘net risk’ or the ‘residual risk’).
This is the analysis of the impact and likelihood of the risk occurring with all the
controls and mitigating actions in place. It is the assessment of the risk at the time the
risk analysis was undertaken.

6.10

The third level is the target risk. This is a score which reflects the analysis of the impact
and likelihood of the risk when all desired controls are fully implemented and are
operational. Wherever possible, the target risk score should be set at or below the risk
appetite for the risk being analysed. However, the nature of the risk might mean that
this not possible. In these circumstances the risk should be managed to a level that is
as low as reasonably practicable.

6.11

Members are requested to review the current Corporate Risk Register at Appendix 1
and feed back any comments to officers.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
As set out in the Corporate Risk Register.
b)

Legal
Failure to manage risk can result in legal action and costs.

c)

Other (Climate Change, Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety,
Environmental, Crime & Disorder)
Failure to manage risk can result in failure to fulfil obligations and duties.

Simon Copley
Head of Corporate Governance
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Will Baines, Senior Corporate Governance Officer
01653 600666 ext: 43228
will.baines@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
None

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 21

30 SEPTEMBER 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

September 2021 Update

RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL: CORPORATE RISK REGISTER

INDEX
Description

Page 23

CRR01 – Covid - 19
CRR02 – Health and Safety
CRR03 – Staffing Resilience and Capacity
CRR04 – Strategic Planning and Leadership
CRR05 – Financial Management
CRR06 – Information Governance
CRR07 – ICT
CRR08 – Contracts and Procurement
CRR09 – Major Events/Incidents (non - Covid)
CRR10 – Job Creation, Economic Sustainability Growth
CRR11 - Safeguarding
CRR12 – Local Government Reorganisation

1

Risk Owner
Stacey Burlet
Louise Wood
Haroon Rashid
Stacey Burlet
Anton Hodge
Louise Wood
Louise Wood
Simon Copley
Margaret Wallace
Phillip Spurr
Margaret Wallace
Stacey Burlet

Page
2
7
9
13
15
17
19
21
23
25
29
31

September 2021 Update

Page 24

CRR01: Covid - 19

Risk Owner: Stacey Burlet

Description
Failure to protect lives and livelihoods in Ryedale during
the response and recovery stages of the Covid -19
pandemic and to plan and deliver measures to ensure
organisational resilience and staff support though the
Covid/post-Covid recovery period.

Causes
Spread of virus/mutations cannot fully be controlled
Partnership response means that multiple bodies have overlapping
accountabilities and responsibilities
Legislation means that the district council has additional accountabilities and
responsibilities; frequently determined at short notice
Fast paced and constantly changing policy environment necessitating the
development of immediate procedures / standardised policies and procedures
may not be fit for purpose
Lack of understanding, buy in and consistency across the Council
Inadequate recording
Lack of proactive actions
Lack of adequate training
Subcontractors and commissioned organisations fail / cannot fulfil agreed
obligations
Lack of /inadequate equipment
Poverty and unemployment resulting from the impact of Covid - 19
Economic recession arising from the consequences of Covid – 19 with
subsequent local business failures and job losses
Staff sickness and the ability to deliver critical services/ longer term objectives
as set out in the Council Plan
Multiple staff isolation all at the same time impacting on resources and the
level of service delivery across all areas
Failure to recognise the scale of the Covid shock upon the operations of the
Council and its staff and respond accordingly, including short and long-term
impact
Vulnerable residents not being able to access support
Lack of sustainability over the longer term across the voluntary and
community sector
Failure to support Community Support Organisations and the wider voluntary
and community sector effectively
Failure to secure sufficient Government funding to address key issues
2

Risk
Score
Original

5E

September 2021 Update

CRR01: Covid - 19

Risk Owner: Stacey Burlet

Risk
Score

Lack of financial and staffing capacity deliver required actions
Lack of effective strategic planning to address response and recovery
Lack of effective engagement with partner agencies within and beyond
Ryedale
Lack of access to testing
Consequences
Rate and spread of Covid-19 mutations
increases locally

Page 25

Increased deaths and/or long-term health
conditions

Proactive Controls
Full engagement with district, regional and
national partners to support COVID response
and recovery, including national Government
and funding agencies and multi-agency
locality focused activity

Lack of test and trace capacity locally
including RDC’s failure to support the
provision of effective processes

Advice, guidance and proactive support
provided to attractions, businesses and
communities by a range of Council services

Increased risk of and potential consequences
of local targeted interventions

Proactive engagement on mutual aid issues

Increased levels of poverty, job losses,
business failure and homelessness across the
district
Failure to plan for and deliver a strong postCovid recovery
Failure to ensure that vulnerable people are
supported through and beyond the Covid
emergency

Plans for response and recovery are in place
and operational.
RDC employee procedures and arrangements
are in place including personal and
workplace based risk assessments; these are
revisited in line with changing Government
guidance
Additional capacity sourced and
implemented where required (e.g. Planning
support)

Decline in community resilience
3

Reactive Controls
Additional control measures as identified
and put in place as required to ensure
COVID secure workplaces, service delivery
and to ensure that the Council’s role in
protecting lives and livelihoods is fully
acquitted
Daily scrutiny of data and intelligence to
determine any actions required
Facilitation of physical and virtual meetings
in accordance with virus prevalence
Briefings and communications for Elected
Members, Strategic Management Board,
and all staff as needed
Ongoing participation in district, regional
and national working groups, that are
coordinating immediate response (i.e. in
relation to outbreak management) and
recovery
Ongoing activity to ensure that strategic
plans reflect emerging policy direction

Current

3D

September 2021 Update

CRR01: Covid - 19

Risk Owner: Stacey Burlet

Decline in physical and mental health of
residents

Workforce access to PPE and health assured
support

Pressures resulting in reduced voluntary and
community sector sustainability

Weekly staff meetings with the CX,
supplemented by email and intranet based
communications

Potential for community tensions
Performance reduction / failures as a
consequence of increased demands on
Council services from customers and
businesses

Page 26

Failure to deliver key Council services /
longer term Council Plan objectives
Adverse social and health consequences for
staff leading to staff absence/reduced
productivity
Reputational risks resulting in a loss of public
confidence in the Council
Breach of obligations relating to legislation
e.g. civil contingency, health and safety, data
protection, with the risk of claims,
prosecution and financial penalties for the
organisation and prosecution and personal
liability of officers (HSE)

Additional support for the voluntary and
community sector including the Community
Connect partnership support programme
Participation in regional and national
partnerships to identify and support the
district’s most vulnerable residents
Finance tracker and MHCLG returns are
maintained to assess the financial impact of
Covid-19 mitigation. This is complemented
by proactive lobbying to ensure that the
maximum amount of Government funding is
secured and appropriate resources are in
place
Update of Business Continuity Plans to take
into account of ongoing Covid/post-Covid
demands

4

Risk
Score
Provision of budgets to ensure appropriate
resources are in place to deliver key
services following Section 151 advice
Regular performance monitoring, with
mitigating actions taken
Report on an ongoing basis to central
Government on Covid/post EU transition
community impacts
Targeted interventions are being
undertaken where required by
Environmental Health Officers

September 2021 Update

CRR01: Covid - 19

Risk Owner: Stacey Burlet

Risk
Score

Loss of revenue to the Council and use of
reserves to offset the financial consequences
of Covid -19
Mitigating Actions
Targeted interventions are being undertaken where required by Environmental Health Officers
Increased staffing capacity in stress / high volume areas - e.g. Planning
Proactive monitoring of staff and community contraction rates
COVID - 19 actions are proactively and reactively addressed as required following guidance and, on occasions, instruction for Government
and the Director of Public Health.

Page 27

Work with businesses, partner agencies, community support organisations and Government to ensure that funding is maximised, support is
in place and plans are delivered to support communities through post Covid/post-EU transition periods.
Continual delivery of effective communications for businesses/Ryedale residents
The Section 151 Officer is assessing the continuing impact of post-Covid recovery work as funding for Covid measures was only provided to
the end of September. Financial impacts may extend beyond this date, which may necessitate agreement for additional investment to cope
with increased service demands. Wherever possible, costs will be contained.
Increased investment in resources to support ongoing good staff mental and physical health and well-being; including continuing to ensure
that key messages/information on support for staff is publicised internally
Ensure provision of appropriate PPE for staff and that appropriate home working facilities and support are in place
Ensure staff resilience/appropriate resourcing in the event of concurrent incidents (eg. winter flooding)
Put in place appropriate plans to ensure health and safety in all Council premises for staff and visitors, including when office based working
at RDC facilities takes place
5

Target

3C

September 2021 Update

CRR02: Health and Safety

Risk Owner: Louise Wood

Description
Failure to comply with and embed health and safety
policy and procedures in the council

Causes
Policies and procedures outdated or not fit-for-purpose
Lack of understanding, buy in and consistency across the Council
Inadequate recording
Lack of proactive actions
Weak action planning
Lack of support capacity
Lack of adequate training
Subcontractors and commissioned organisations
Lack of /inadequate equipment
Public health incidents / pandemics

Page 28

Consequences
Resulting in injuries, fatalities, claims

Proactive Controls
Health and safety policy

Reactive Controls
Accident reporting procedure

Reputational damage

Health and Safety Action Plan

Annual health and safety report

Impact on service delivery

Quarterly Corporate Health , Safety and
Wellbeing Group

Daily COVID-secure workplace monitoring

Risk of prosecution and financial penalties
for the organisation
Prosecution and personal liability of senior
officers and consequences for Leader/Dep
Leader
Lack of containment of public health
emergencies

Mandatory training (SMB monitored) and
service-specific training
Covid -19 risk assessment and controls in
place with regards to service delivery,
employee welfare and democratic meetings
Democratic meetings policy and riskassessments

6

Risk
Score
Original

5E

Current

3C

September 2021 Update

CRR02: Health and Safety

Risk Owner: Louise Wood

Mitigating Actions
All staff required to confirm understanding of policy on annual basis

Risk
Score
Target

2B

Delivery of action plan monitored on quarterly basis
Provision of specialist health and safety advice to provide up-to-date guidance and lead progression on health and safety activity
Communications rolled out across staffing and employee groups and on intranet
Regular meetings with UNISON and service managers on COVID-secure workplace
Targeted intervention programme in place in Waste and Environmental Services using additional capacity

Page 29

Ongoing health and Safety audit of facilities
Implementation of COVID guidance/instruction from government and public health.

7

September 2021 Update

Risk Owner: Haroon Rashid

Description
Lack of resilience or capacity to achieve strategic and/or
operational objectives

Causes
Lack of staffing resource to support delivery against strategic and operational
objectives
Lack of staff development to support succession planning, retention and
successful delivery
Inadequate budget to fund an appropriate staffing structure
Poor reputation as an employer
Failure to recruit, particularly in specialist areas where the market is highly
competitive
Lack of or inadequate workforce strategy
Covid-19 pandemic impact on labour market
Covid-19 long Covid implications
Unprecedented circumstances requiring the reallocation of resources to meet
urgent, reactive need e.g. COVID outbreak, natural emergency , BREXIT
LGR proposals may have an impact on staff turnover, staff resilience and
morale

Page 30

CRR03: Staffing Resilience and Capacity

Consequences
Customer and local resident detriment
Service failure
Special measures if statutory or legislative
expectations are unmet

Proactive Controls
On-going proactive approach to recruitment
and resourcing to address current 'gaps' in
establishment.

Reactive Controls
Outsourcing to specialist agencies where
there is a need to ensure that statutory,
legislative or important service need is met
e.g. legal advice, dog breeder accreditation

Learning Zone access for all employees.
Re-prioritisation of service delivery
Job evaluation process in place.

Poor customer satisfaction, leading to
complaints and requests for compensation
Low staff morale
Poor productivity among staff

Financial monitoring and reporting including a new approach to budget strategy
development and oversight.
Regular CX, SMB, manager & staff
communication and engagement sessions
8

Turn the service off if practical - this course
of action has been taken when extreme
staff shortages have occurred (e.g. street
sweeping so that bin collections occurred)
Overtime – exceptional and by agreement.

Risk
Score
Original

5D

Current

3C

September 2021 Update

CRR03: Staffing Resilience and Capacity
Increasing sickness levels

Risk Owner: Haroon Rashid

Risk
Score

taking place to ensure that the pulse of the
organisation is taken and responded to.

Service Risk Registers incorporate
mitigations for resilience and capacity risks

Regular surveys – ensuring views of
workforce are captured and concerns are
responded to.

Zero tolerance approach rolled out includes
acting on the speak out policy as needed
and exit interview intelligence

Graduate trainees and apprenticeship
programmes in place.

Additional control measures as identified /
required to ensure COVID secure
workplaces and service delivery

Higher staff turnover
LGO decisions
Damage to reputation
Staff wellbeing suffers
Legal action
Financial penalties

Page 31

Failure to meet legislative requirements,
election and electoral register
responsibilities
Increasing levels of sickness absence as a
result of COVID-19 contraction rates
Inability to meet increased service demand
as a consequence of additional
accountabilities and increased service
demand brought about by COVID -19

HR/OD service ensures that organisational
development and the employee journey is
increasingly focused upon.
Elections Risk Register.
All staff complete mandatory training
requirements, with accelerated levels for
managers.
Shared service arrangements in place to
support organisational resilience where this
represents best value and ensures that a
focus can be maintained on both short and
longer term objectives.
Increased staffing capacity investment in
place endorsed through budget setting
processes

9

September 2021 Update

CRR03: Staffing Resilience and Capacity

Risk Owner: Haroon Rashid
People and Culture Plan reviewed and rolled
out with ongoing assessment of
effectiveness.
Organisational Development programme
initiated with manager & staff involvement
as appropriate.
New Ways of Working plans discussed and
implemented – service specific

Page 32

New collective agreement and revised pay,
terms and conditions package implemented
for Grade 10 and below directly employed by
the organisation.
Appraisal process rolled out linked to LGR
decision and council plan delivery.
Delivery of HR/OD actions in the corporate
delivery programme of the Council Plan.
Council Plan and corporate programme in
place to determine strategic objectives and
the delivery plan for achieving them
New partnership arrangement in place for
Procurement support.
Adoption of new policies and procedures
such as zero tolerance
10

Risk
Score

September 2021 Update

CRR03: Staffing Resilience and Capacity

Risk Owner: Haroon Rashid

Risk
Score

Budget strategy development, financial
monitoring and reporting includes a strong
focus on workforce related issues
Covid 19 procedures and arrangements
reviewed regularly
Mitigating Actions
Appraisal process Grades 10 and below has been refreshed and revised to ensure that there is a focus on issues such as supporting LGR
transition, and performance against strategic and operational goals and a training, learning and development plan linked to professional
and personal goals. Appraisal rollout commenced from the beginning of August, with an expectation that all appraisals will be completed
by the end of September.

Page 33

Initial Training Needs analysis completed; new training and development programme in place for employees and so that managers support
and fulfil their responsibilities to employees.
Review of commissioned and third party arrangements and obligations.
New partnership arrangement in place for legal support.
Rolling programme of review of policies and procedures underway to ensure they are fit for purpose.
Review of Waste Services currently taking place to ensure the operating model is fit for purpose.

11

Target

2B

September 2021 Update

CRR04: Strategic Planning and Leadership

Risk Owner: Stacey Burlet

Description
Failure to establish, review or deliver against strategic / corporate priorities
so that the long-term aspirations and ambitions of Ryedale are achieved,
resulting in sub-optimal performance and/or failure to deliver the agreed
Council Plan

Causes
Misalignment of resources and priorities due to unrealistic
/ undefined targets and objectives
Unrealistic expectations relating to timescales, capacity or
remit
Capacity and skills of the workforce are lacking or
inadequate to support the delivery of targets
Lack of advice taken to inform planning, delivery or
decision-making

Page 34

Unprecedented circumstances requiring the reallocation of
resources to meet urgent, reactive need e.g. COVID
outbreak, natural emergency , BREXIT
Inadequate training and development programmes for
member and officers
Lack of clear political direction
Inability of officers to focus on core work areas due to
capacity issues
Lack of clarity or confidence in strategic direction
Decision processes ineffective
Sensitivity around elected member / officer relationships

12

Risk
Score
Original

5D

September 2021 Update

CRR04: Strategic Planning and Leadership

Risk Owner: Stacey Burlet

Risk
Score

Significant national policy changes / direction e.g. LGR, the
Future of Planning
Consequences
Lack of direction

Proactive Controls
Council Plan 2020-24 in place

Lack of delivery progress

Strategy and performance
management team in place

Failure to achieve long term improvements for local
residents and businesses

Page 35

Resources not aligned to priorities/misuse of resources
Loss of opportunities (e.g. financial - business rates)
Lack of accountability
Poor customer and stakeholder satisfaction
Low staff morale and motivation

Regular Management Board
programme determines officer
guidance and advice on corporate
and strategic matters
CEX communications and weekly
staff meetings

Poor leadership performance

Regular updates to relevant
Committees to focus on key areas
of development

Reputational damage / poor reputation among
stakeholders, communities and partners

Complaints and compliments
monitoring

Lack of political leadership prevents Ryedale from taking
part in important conversations about our future at
regional and national level

Annual report and quarterly
performance monitoring

Reactive Controls
Red and amber performance ratings are
investigated and addressed where
possible, with appropriate elected
member scrutiny

Current

3C

Targeted interventions as required to
address complaints trends
Business case / bid development as
required to progress delivery of key
work programmes identified within the
Council Plan
Mutual aid being established for
enacted as required during LGR

Changes in political leadership impacting on local and
regional partnerships
Mitigating Actions

Target
13

September 2021 Update

CRR04: Strategic Planning and Leadership

Risk Owner: Stacey Burlet

A n annual report of progress against the Council Plan during 2020-21 is due to be presented to P&R in September.
Quarterly performance monitoring for 2021-22 begins at September’s P&R.
Refresh of the Council Plan is being organised to determine key delivery priorities given the recent LGR decision and changes in political
leadership.

Page 36
14

Risk
Score

3C

September 2021 Update

CRR05: Financial Management

Risk Owner: Anton Hodge

Description
Failure to have adequate financial management within
the Council

Causes
Lack of data or poor system output
Finance staff capacity
Political/management perception
Lack of informed decision making
Lack of confidence, engagement, experience and awareness within managers
across the council

Page 37

Consequences
Over or underspend

Proactive Controls
Budget monitoring and reporting

Lack of investment

Root and branch reviews

Damage to reputation

External support

Qualified audits

Financial Performance Reports

Lack of awareness of resources, leading to
impact on performance (spending in 'wrong'
areas)

Budget Managers' access to Pentana

Possible external intervention

Capital Plan

Weak long term planning

Treasury management

Reactive Controls
Budget monitoring and reporting, including
capital
Continuous cycle of Root and branch
reviews
Review of Audit arrangements to ensure
correct focus on areas of risk
Prioritisation of funding/use of reserves

Financial Strategy
Review of commissioned and third party
arrangements and obligations
In-year review to ascertain impact of Covid
and assess reliance on reserves to ensure a
balanced outturn for 2021-22

Report to committees
Review and update reports on financial
performance
Review capacity of financial support
15

Work with partners and other LAs to
determine medium term impact of Covid on
income streams and build into refreshed
Financial Strategy – due in late autumn

Risk
Score
Original

5E

Current

3C

September 2021 Update

CRR05: Financial Management

Risk Owner: Anton Hodge

Risk
Score

More member involvement and transparency
in Financial Strategy and Capital Plan
Mitigating Actions
Additional External support where appropriate

Target

2B

Deliver training/agree expectations of role of budget managers
Use of Benchmarking – including financial and service performance
Review all financial procedures including contract procedures
Focussed reviews on areas of budget vulnerability, including overspends and where savings are expected

Page 38

Work with service managers to ensure required savings are agreed and understood
Ensure members are kept informed of spending plans and impact on reserves
Set out financial procedures relating to LGR – if and where appropriate

16

September 2021 Update

CRR06: Information Governance

Risk Owner: Louise Wood

Description
Ineffective data governance arrangements lead to
unacceptable levels of unauthorised disclosure of
personal and sensitive data, poor quality or delayed
responses to FOI requests, and inability to locate key data
upon which the Council relies, resulting in loss of
reputation and poor decision-making

Causes
Lack of staff and expertise
Lack of staff development
Governance not embedded in organisational culture
Information governance arrangements not in place for shared services
Simple mistakes

Consequences
Service user detriment
Service failure

Page 39

Proactive Controls
Training, policies in place, regular CIGG
meetings, access to expert advice,
monitoring systems and audits, information
asset register,

Reactive Controls
Breach process in place,

DPIA template in place
Continue to emphasise personal
responsibility of staff for all information and
consider disciplinary action against breaches

CIGG reviews

FOI review process in place,
lessons learnt considered,

Special measures
Poor customer and/or staff satisfaction
Staff turnover
ICO decisions

Continue to review information asset
registers

LGO decisions
Damage to reputation
Staff wellbeing suffers

Ensure individual data sharing arrangements
are completed for each activity
Ensure Data Protection risks are managed to
comply with GDPR

Legal action
Financial penalties

Separate Information Governance Risk
Register

17

Risk
Score
Original

5E

Current

3D

September 2021 Update

CRR06: Information Governance

Risk Owner: Louise Wood

Risk
Score

Online mandatory training completed by
existing staff and by new starters as part of
induction
Mitigating Actions
Ensure individual data sharing arrangements are completed for each activity
Ensure Data Protection risks are managed to comply with GDPR - specifically around contracts and other service agreements
Continue communications to staff
Continue regular training

Page 40
18

Target

4C

September 2021 Update

Page 41

CRR07: ICT

Risk Owner: Louise Wood

Description
Ability to deliver public services is severely compromised
or reduced due to ICT failure

Causes
Outdated or inappropriate policies
Poor corporate controls over ICT system
Inadequate contractual arrangements, and poor contract management
Over-reliance on third party suppliers
Outdated, ineffective or ill-configured ICT infrastructure
Ill-configured or inadequate software
Limited internal capacity
Lack of adequate training in effective system use
Lack of/inadequate equipment
Inadequate disaster recovery planning
System security is compromised through inadequate security controls or cyber
attack
Insufficient investment reduces ICT capacity and effectiveness

Consequences
Citizens do not receive a service or receive a
poor service

Proactive Controls
PSN compliance health check and
certification

Reactive Controls
DR site available if required
Third party support

Services are unable to operate, or must
operate at a reduced level, for a protracted
period of time

Disaster recovery plans

Services are unable to operate efficiently

Centralization of IT decision-making and
budgets

Contract audit

Data is lost or irretrievable
IT policies and procedures
Organisation loses PSN connection
Systems are breached

19

Risk
Score
Original

5E

Current

3C

September 2021 Update

CRR07: ICT

Risk Owner: Louise Wood

Mitigating Actions
External service review and reporting

Risk
Score
Target

2C

Annual third party health check and implementation of actions
Maintenance of software and systems within service support dates
Ongoing investment in cloud and SaaS
Training and development of staff in appropriate use of systems and software, including security
Links with National Cyber Security Centre

Page 42

Testing of DR arrangements

20

September 2021 Update

CRR08: Contracts and Procurement

Risk Owner: Simon Copley

Description
Failure to ensure that effective procurement and contract
management is carried out across the Council
Brexit risk to procurement and supply chain

Causes
Lack of awareness and ownership across the Council
Outdated policies and procedures
The UK leaving the EU (Brexit) with no trading deals in place

Consequences
Inability to deliver Value for Money

Proactive Controls
Contracts Register

Reactive Controls
Review of expired contracts

Risk of breaking procurement law and
regulation

Quarterly update and review

Retrospective permissions applied for

Wider Partnership arrangements

Review of projects due out to the market at
the time the UK leaves the EU

Page 43

Financial penalties
Less effective contracts/contract
management
Missed opportunities

Increase the regularity of supplier risk
assessments, from annual to bi-annual or
quarterly, dependent on the strategic
importance of the contract.

The result of the Brexit negotiations could
have a negative impact on the Council’s
supply chain, both with direct tier 1 suppliers
and their sub-contractor network.

Work with legal services to understand
financial and legal the impact of noncompliant contracts or those operating on
suppliers’ terms and conditions.

Existing supply contracts may be impacted by
changes in regulation, or legal requirements.

Early engagement with supply markets when
we are looking to tender.

Assurance of Supply - risk that a complete
failure in supply of the goods / service (e.g.
Carillion) from key suppliers could be felt.

Review of the services the council delivers to
assess the potential impact on specific supply
chains.

Service levels may be impacted negatively by
any changes in the Supply Chain or access to

Early supplier engagement should identify
areas of cost increase that need to be
21

Risk
Score
Original

5D
Current

3C

September 2021 Update

CRR08: Contracts and Procurement

Risk Owner: Simon Copley

workers, particularly in low skilled
categories.

factored into budget control and or change in
requirements.

Financial risk need to consider if any supply
changes will drive up costs of the Goods /
Services/Works in the short/medium/long
term.

New partnership in place with NYCC to
deliver procurement services

Mitigating Actions
Review contract procedure rules

Risk
Score

Target

2B

Ensure all staff with authority for procurement and contracts are appropriately trained and are aware of their responsibilities

Page 44

Draw up new Procurement and Contract Management Strategy (taking into account healthcheck) and Action Plan to ensure that Value of
Money is a key requirement and that relevant staff take a commercial approach to purchasing. This will also encompass a detailed spend
analysis to identify and deliver savings.
Networking with relevant groups and other local authorities to ensure we are aware of important developments and to share and learn
from good practice and review shared agreements
Regular reporting on performance
Review of shared service arrangements to ensure they are fit for purpose, including Internal Audit reports
Undertake Supplier analysis, segment and understand our supplier base. See where your critical suppliers are, and even look at who
supplies our suppliers. If there are EU companies in that mix, understand how that could impact the rest of our flow.

22

September 2021 Update

CRR09: Major Events/Incidents (non-Covid)

Risk Owner: Margaret Wallace

Description
Failure to respond to major regional, national or global
events and incidents – and to learn from previous incidents

Causes
Lack of senior officer and workforce capacity
Lack of business support
Poor networking
Lack of IT capacity
Lack of policy and horizon scanning function
Unknown and unpredicted events e.g. natural disasters
Potentially foreseeable events, e.g.:
Carbon emissions
Local Government reorganisation
Government policy – major change of direction
Scale of natural disaster e.g. flooding
Sustained periods of inclement weather

Page 45

Consequences
Lack of staff capacity to deliver services

Proactive Controls
Membership of regional/sub-regional
response structures

Lack of funding to deliver services
Unable to cope with reduced (or increased)
funding

Membership of expert bodies that lobby
Government and provide updates and
guidance during period of crisis e.g. DCN,
LGA

Not able to lobby appropriately
Allocation of finance to address key issues
Delays in responding to / implementing new
requirements
Costs arising from lack of pre-agreements
and agreed policy/processes
Missed opportunities

Cross department and cross-agency working
Membership of expert bodies to guide our
response to policy development
Attendance at seminars, workshops and
professional development
23

Reactive Controls
Briefing papers for Strategic Management
Board and Elected Members on immediate
and urgent issues relating to major change
and incidents
Participation in civil contingency planning
and delivery – Strategic Command Group,
Tactical Command Group for York and
North Yorkshire
Participation in region/sub-regional
response groups
Learning form table top exercises/previous
events

Risk
Score
Original

5E

Current

5D

September 2021 Update

CRR09: Major Events/Incidents (non-Covid)
Death and / or failure to protect public
health
Increased risk of flooding and other natural
disasters

Risk Owner: Margaret Wallace

Risk
Score

Attendance of various Yorkshire and the
Humber/ NY and Yorkshire-wide meetings
i.e. Leaders, Chief Executives Group
Regular liaison with partnership bodies e.g.
the LEP

Lack of ability to deliver civil contingency
partnership accountabilities

Climate Change Action Plan

Inability to support local communities and
businesses to recover from major changes or
incidents

Participation in civil contingency planning
and delivery, e.g. Strategic Recovery Group
for York and North Yorkshire

Page 46

Learning from previous incidents
Mitigating Actions
Networking with relevant groups and other local authorities to ensure we are consistent and sharing and learn from good practice

24

Target

4D

September 2021 Update

CRR10: Job Creation, Economic Sustainability and Growth

Risk Owner: Phillip Spurr

Description
Failure to support business and the growth/retention of
jobs locally as the district recovers from the Covid
pandemic; failure to take advantage of the benefits of
national (e.g. a York/North Yorkshire devolution deal) and
international changes (departure from the EU)

Causes
Failure to recognise the scale of the Covid economic shock and respond
accordingly
Failure to recognise the opportunities offered by devolution and from the
new arrangements with the EU
Lack of effective strategic planning to address these issues
Lack of effective engagement with partner agencies within and beyond
Ryedale
Failure to engage effectively in shaping a final devolution deal
Failure to secure sufficient Government funding to address key issues
Lack of financial and staffing capacity deliver required actions

Page 47

Consequences
Economic underperformance leading to business
failures and job losses

Proactive Controls
New corporate plan reflects
opportunities/priorities in each of
these areas

Reactive Controls
Briefing papers for Elected Members and,
Strategic Management Board provided on a
regular basis on each of these issues

Development and delivery of a
comprehensive Ryedale post-Covid
economic recovery plan

Ongoing participation in working groups,
fora and partnerships helping to direct these
activities

Effective provision of business
support – both financial and
non-financial

Ongoing activity to ensure that strategic
plans reflect emerging policy direction

Adverse social and health consequences
Decline/stagnation in district town centres
Decline in key economic sectors, including
agriculture/manufacturing/services/retail, leisure
and hospitality
Inability to deliver key infrastructure
improvements
Inability to deliver low carbon initiatives
Ryedale becomes an unattractive location for
investment, and for people to live, work, invest
and visit

Full engagement with district, regional
and national partners to deliver
economic recovery – e.g.
LEP/NYCC/national
Government/funding agencies

25

Regular performance monitoring, with
mitigating actions taken
Briefing papers for Elected Members and,
Strategic Management Board provided on a
regular basis on each of these issues

Risk
Score
Original

5D

Current

3D

September 2021 Update

CRR10: Job Creation, Economic Sustainability and Growth
Increased loss of young people seeking economic
opportunities elsewhere

Risk Owner: Phillip Spurr

Securing of additional investment – eg.
Levelling Up[/Community Renewal
Fund resources

Increased unemployment
Loss of investment/business as it seeks
opportunities elsewhere
Reputational risks – to the council and to the
wider district
Loss of public confidence in the council

Page 48

Recruitment difficulties
Price uncertainty and supply chain difficulties
Price pressures from contractors, increased
demands on services from customers and
businesses
Loss of revenue to the council

Proactive lobbying to ensure that
Government funding support is
maximised for all Ryedale economic
sectors including manufacturing,
services, retail, leisure and hospitality,
tourism and culture
Proactive engagement to shape the
asks of the York/North Yorkshire
devolution deal/local government
reorganisation to ensure that benefits
to Ryedale are maximised
Utilisation of guidance upon Britain’s
future relationship with the EU on
specific areas such as
trade/procurement/funding
programmes
Progress on all actions monitored and
reported to Strategic Management
Board and to Members of a regular
basis

26

Risk
Score
Lobbying of local, regional and national
partners to increase support and resources
to promote increased economic
sustainability

September 2021 Update

CRR10: Job Creation, Economic Sustainability and Growth

Risk Owner: Phillip Spurr

Mitigating Actions
Work with businesses, partner agencies and Government to ensure that funding is maximised, support is in place and plans are delivered to
support business health, jobs and livelihoods in the post Covid/post-EU transition periods
Engage in partnership groups/fora to ensure effective planning and delivery of cross-North Yorkshire economic recovery initiatives
Report on an ongoing basis to central Government on Covid/post EU transition economic impacts
Play a full role in negotiations with Government to agree devolution asks and shape local government reorganisation proposals
Participate in engagement activities arranged by Government upon planning for the future relationship with the EU; review impact on the
Council and report regularly to Members/Strategic Management Board.

Page 49

New EU relationship - continue to receive notification on emerging guidance on areas affecting Local Government, review impact on the
Council and report regularly on this to Management Board
Workforce: monitor the potential impact on recruitment in particular and put together an appropriate action plan if required
Prepare and implement Corporate new EU relationship Readiness Action Plan
As part of the budget setting process, consider the impact of post-Covid economic recovery work, devolution/local government
reorganisation proposals and the impact of the new relationship with the EU
Continue to ensure that key messages/information in each of these areas is publicised both internally and externally.
Participate in engagement activities arranged by Government upon planning for the future; review impact on the Council and report
regularly to Members/Strategic Management Board.

27

Risk
Score
Target

3C

September 2021 Update

Page 50

CRR11: Safeguarding

Risk Owner: Margaret Wallace

Description
Failure to ensure Safeguarding
(Children and Adults), risk of death or injury to
children/adults, through inappropriate practices, care or
attention

Causes
Lack of awareness and ownership across the Council
Outdated policies and procedures
Lack of assurance that written policies and procedures are actually being
followed
Contact details in the Safeguarding Policy are not up to date
Training records are not adequate
Compulsory attendance at safeguarding training for members has not been
monitored and enforced.
No clear list of DBS checks necessary for staff
Updating the guidance available to employees in respect of convictions.
Safeguarding arrangements are not included in contracts as standard
Regular refresher training about information security and internet usage
The Whistleblowing Policy needs to be updated

Consequences
Poorer outcomes for children and adults

Proactive Controls
Internal Audit undertaken

Impact on statutory responsibilities and
regulatory judgement

Quarterly safeguarding meetings are place
with representatives from each service areas

Complaints/claims/litigation

Quarterly meeting in place with elected
members leads

Reactive Controls
Annual check on safeguarding terms or
reference/ policy
Annual review of contract management for
safeguarding clause
Annual review of safeguarding training

Increased costs
Adverse publicity

SMART Safeguarding action plan in place to
mitigate risk and address any issues

Reputation damage

Quarterly reports to SMB on safeguarding

Adverse effect on the Council's
partners and providers

HR policies updated, and placed on Bob, all
staff have read and understood the policy,
and this is recorded centrally
28

Policies and procedures will be reviewed on
an annual basis to ensure they are kept up
to date with new legislation/guidance and
version control will be introduced to ensure
annual review undertaken
Safeguarding action plan/report will report
quarterly to SMB and Overview and

Risk
Score
Original

5D

Current

3C

September 2021 Update

CRR11: Safeguarding
Adverse effect on morale

Risk Owner: Margaret Wallace
Training records updated

Risk
Score
Scrutiny Committee

Safeguarding training records being updated
centrally
Mitigating Actions
Quarterly meeting set up and attended by all manager (service rep) to highlight awareness and ownership across the Council
New policy and procedure drafted and distributed to all managers and staff and placed on BOB
Record of employee havening read and understood the new safeguarding policy recorded across the council centrally and checked
quarterly for staff who have left or started with the council

Page 51

Contact details in the Safeguarding Policy are now updated
Guidance drafted from HR of necessity for DBS checks and assessment, all managers checking JD, risk assessing and ensuring safe
recruitment practices put in place
The Whistleblowing Policy has been updated
Senior management/heads of service/ managers to include safeguarding in their service/team plans and report back on progress
All head of service/ managers will ensure that all staff have undertaken mandatory safeguarding training and ensured they have been given
the policy and procedures and this is recorded centrally or om 1-2-1 and PRDs
Review arrangements for the recovery of the systems following a software crash in line with business continuity/risk plans
Out of hours standby arrangements in place in Ryecare, housing and community team

29

Target

2B

September 2021 Update

Risk Owner: Stacey Burlet

Description
Failure to plan for local government reorganisation,
operate effectively during reorganisation, and plan for
and manage the transition to a new local authority.

Causes
Challenging and inflexible timeline set by Government directive and legislation
Insufficient staffing resources
Ineffective collaboration between authorities
Insufficient capacity to support implementation expectations for resourcing
Workforce instability
Lack of adequate training, support and guidance for the workforce
Reduction in quality of democratic representation / decision-making
Loss of local knowledge and expertise
Disruption to existing service delivery
Anticipated benefits may not be realised
Potential non-compliance with data regulations and cyber-attacks
Political instability
Weakened Trade Union/Industrial relations
Financial implications
Service failure
Lack of / poor governance

Page 52

CRR12: Local Government Reorganisation

Consequences
Reputational damage
Lack of productivity / reduced performance /
service failure

Proactive Controls
Staff Q&As and communications (email,
intranet); including CX-led weekly meeting

Reactive Controls
Weekly staff meeting updates
Information Governance and Data

Elected Member communications/briefings
Protection Rights Policy

Risk of prosecution and financial penalties
for the organisation
Impact on capacity to contribute to LGR
programme effectively
Weakened relationships with other key
stakeholders

Group Leader engagement
Equalities in Employment Policy
Programme to provide advice, support and
training to the workforce; which includes
refreshed appraisal roll out to determine the
programme for support over the next 18
months
30

Redeployment and Redundancy Policy and
procedure
Recruitment Policy, Framework and
Guidelines including Safer Recruitment

Risk
Score
Original

5E

Current

3C

September 2021 Update

CRR12: Local Government Reorganisation

Loss of key staff during the transition,
combined with reduced ability to recruit new
staff

Risk Owner: Stacey Burlet
CX involvement in MHCLG and N.Yorkshire
wide CX meetings; Chair of P&R involvement
in political equivalent

Risk
Score
Staff Q&As and communications
Elected Member communications/briefings

Loss of meaningful representation of local
communities

Workstream development and delivery
with involvement of key staff

Complexity in achieving strategic alignment
between Members
Potential for conflict in change process

Page 53

Reduced budgets/capital due to increased
spend prior to reorganisation
Increased levels of staff sickness and fatigue
Mitigating Actions
The 2023 implementation timeline will allow for appropriate governance and implementation arrangements to be put in place
Additional resource will be required to support the delivery of the transition programme across all relevant councils
Significant amount of communications and engagement with staff will be rolled out across employee groups and on intranets, as well as
open and honest engagement with trade unions and implementation team arrangements.
Boundary Commission will undertake review during the first term of the new council; electoral arrangements are being considered at the
earliest stages of the implementation process.
All councils will be required to play a key role in the design of new services/transition arrangements; and ensuing service continuity from
day 1
31

Target

2B

September 2021 Update

CRR12: Local Government Reorganisation

Risk Owner: Stacey Burlet

There will be a process in place for significant spending to be signed off through continuing authority governance processes
Ongoing tracking of benefits realised will occur via the implementation team

Page 54
32

Risk
Score

Agenda Item 8

PART A:

MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

REPORT TO:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

DATE:

30 SEPTEMBER 2021

REPORT OF THE:

HEAD OF COMMUNICATIONS, TECHNOLOGIES AND
BUSINESS TRANSFORMATION
LOUISE WOOD

TITLE OF REPORT:

EQUALITIES ACTION PLAN

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The purpose of this report is to ensure that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee is
sighted on the action plan to deliver the organisation’s equality objectives, and to
request the Committee’s agreement for regular (six monthly) reports to come to the
Committee in order that progress against the plan may be monitored.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

It is recommended
(i)

That the action plan be noted as an operational document to assist officers in
the delivery of equality actions

(ii)

That the Committee agrees that overview of progress against the action plan
will be maintained through a six monthly report to the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

Ryedale District Council’s equality scheme has been updated in light of the Local
Government Association’s Equalities Framework and the Public Sector Equality Duty.
The new Equality Scheme comprises three elements: policy statement and
objectives; an action plan (an operational document for officers, to drive progress
against the objectives), and appendices pertinent to the scheme.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 55

30 SEPTEMBER 2021

3.2

The policy and objectives constitutes the policy element of the Equality Scheme, and
in consequence, this will be put forward for consideration by the Policy and
Resources Committee in September 2021 as a Part B item, which will subsequently
go to Full Council.

3.3

The subsequent monitoring of the Council’s activities to deliver objectives would fall
within the remit of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, hence the proposal is for
six monthly reports to come to this Committee in order that Elected Members may be
sighted on progress, and may raise any matters connected with the timely delivery of
the equality action plan as appropriate.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There are no significant risks associated with adopting the recommendations set out
in this paper.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The Council’s Equality Scheme, of which the action plan is a part, has been
developed to meet the requirements of the Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector
Equality Duty.

5.2

The Equality Scheme, including the action plan, draws significantly upon the Local
Government Equality Framework 2020, which sets out a structure for local authorities
to assess and enhance their equalities position.

5.3

The findings of the Equalities Task Group, a sub-group of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee, have been fully taken into account in the drafting of the new Equality
Scheme of which the action plan is a key part.

5.4

Staff views have also been taken into consideration in the preparation of the action
plan.

REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

The Council’s Equality Scheme required significant revision to update the scheme
and align activity with the Local Government Association Equality Framework and the
Council’s legal duties under the Public Sector Equality Duty. This was recognised by
the Scrutiny Committee Equalities Task Group in its interim report.

6.2

This work has been carried out and the resulting Equality Scheme comprises three
elements: a policy statement and objectives; an action plan, and appendices
pertinent to the scheme. The first (policy) element will be considered by the Policy
and Resources Committee. The latter two elements are operational documents to be
used by officers to enact the objectives and support progress on the equality,
diversity and inclusion agenda.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 56

30 SEPTEMBER 2021

6.3

The Council is committed to continuous improvement on the equality, diversity and
inclusion agenda, and to making progress against its objectives. It is therefore
important that objectives are “operationalized” (which is the purpose of the action
plan element of the Equality Scheme) and that this progress is reported regularly and
transparently.

6.4

For this reason, it is requested that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee agree to
accept six monthly reports on the Equality Scheme, in order that this important
agenda be kept under review by Elected Members.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a)

Financial
There is no direct financial implication from the adoption of the recommendation
that Overview and Scrutiny Committee keep the action plan under review. Any
resource requirement associated with the delivery of the action plan will be
incorporated within the organisation’s Financial Strategy.

b)

Legal
Adoption and publication of the Equality Scheme, and annual progress against it,
will bring Ryedale District Council into alignment with its legal responsibilities
under the Public Sector Duty.

c)

Other
The purpose of the Equality Scheme is to enhance the Council’s position and
activity around the equality, diversity and inclusion agenda. Reporting regularly
on progress made will help to demonstrate the Council’s commitment in this area
– which is a factor within the Local Government Association’s Equality
Framework.

Author:
Telephone:
Email:

Louise Wood
Head of Communications, Technologies and Business Transformation
01653 600666 ext: 43223
Louise.Wood@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
The policy and objectives element of the Equalities Scheme will be published as part of the
Agenda Pack for the Policy and Resources Committee meeting of 23 September 2021.
The LGA Equality Framework 2020 (current) version is available at:
https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/guidance-and-resources/equality-frameworks/equalityframework-local-government
The interim report of the Scrutiny Committee Equalities Task Group is available at:
https://democracy.ryedale.gov.uk/documents/b6974/Late%20papers%2003rd-Oct2019%2018.30%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=9 pp9-10

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 57

30 SEPTEMBER 2021

EQUALITIES SCHEME

Equality action plan for 2021-2023
with appendices

Author
SMB owner
Version
Status

Head of Communications, Technologies and Business Transformation
Head of Communications, Technologies and Business Transformation
1.0
This document forms part of Ryedale District Council’s overall
Equality Scheme
It is an operational document provided to Overview and Scrutiny
Committee for information to give assurance that the equality,
diversity and inclusion agenda is being operationalized in line with
the Local Government Association Equalities Framework and the
Public Sector Equality Duty

Page 58

Action plan
Understanding and working with our communities
Objective 1: We will improve our understanding of our communities by
gathering, analysing and sharing profile data, which can be used for evidencebased decision-making
Where we are now
•

•
•
•
•
•

Community profile information has been gathered for five community areas of Helmsey,
Kirkbymoorside, Pickering, Malton and Norton. The information includes: population by sex,
vulnerability, benefits, housing type, energy rating, vehicle ownership, community actions,
employment occupation types
Co-location arrangements are in place with DWP and North Yorkshire Police to facilitate jointworking on community issues (eg hate crime and anti-social behaviour)
Community Connect Partnership in place to facilitate information-sharing about community
need across the partnership
Parish Council meeting in place to facilitate information-sharing on community issues
Community Link Team attends parish meetings to gather intelligence of community sentiment
and issues
Information governance arrangements in place, including policies and data sharing agreements
with North Yorkshire County Council and North Yorkshire Police
Joint working in various fora, and with a range of partners, to share information and address
matters of adult and child safeguarding, public health and public safety

Development action plan
Activity
Establish platform for publication of
stage 1 community profile and equality
information

Timing
2021

Establish log-ons and promote use of
platform amongst service leads internally
to aid in decision-making

2021/2

Review data-sharing agreements
amongst key partners and gaps
addressed

2021/2

Page 59

Measure
Platform available;
basic demographic
information
published
All service managers
able to access;
publicity issued; BOB
page available
Report provided to
SMB setting out datasharing agreements
in place

1

Establish permissions and access to
platform for partners and promote use

2021/2

Community Safety Hub in place at
Ryedale House; information sharing
arrangements fully in place
Build on joint data platform with
appropriate partners to extend
community insight

2021/2

DPIA/data sharing
arrangements in
place as required.
Key partners defined
and log-ons provided.
Comms materials
issued.
Hub operating

2022/3

Plan in place for data
development

2022/3

Delivery of data
development plan

Page 60

2

Objective 2: Working with partners, we will gather information about
community needs and aspirations, and give communities a role in decisionmaking
Where we are now
•
•

Commitment to Place Standard technique for gathering community data about community
aspirations as described at https://www.ryedale.gov.uk/information/community/making-greatneighbourhoods/
Pickering Place Standard has run and initial data gathered

Development action plan
Activity
Review/revise place standard
questionnaire to ensure equality issues
are fully represented
Develop/embed mechanisms for frontline community data to be collected and
shared
Refresh Pickering data to verify any
changes to community aspirations post
COVID and gain partnership buy-in on
action plan
Roll-out place standard event in Helmsley
and gain partnership buy-in on action
plan
Roll-out place standard events in Malton,
Norton and Kirkbymoorside and gain
partnership buy-in on action plan

Timing
2021/2
2021/2

Measure
Revised
questionnaire in
place
Feed-in mechanism
in place

2021

Plan in operating and
actions being tracked

2021

Plan in operation and
actions being tracked

2022/3

Plan in operation and
actions being tracked

Page 61

3

Objective 3: We will foster good community relations by increasing our active
participation in EDI awareness days and partnership campaigns, and
championing inclusion in democratic structures
Where we are now
•
•
•
•
•

Community Safety Partnership in place as the structure for understanding community
cohesiveness, relationships and tensions
Partnership working between the Community Link Team and partners on the ground eg: speed
awareness events with North Yorkshire Police, attendance in the Citizen’s Advice van as part of
Community Connect
Link to North Yorkshire County Council Stronger Communities
Some engagement on specific partner-led campaigns eg: safeguarding week, hate crime
Support messages and Rainbow Flag flown in Pride Month

Development action plan
Activity
Develop more detailed understanding of
hate crime incidence through data link
with North Yorkshire Police
Deliver a calendar of awareness days
linked to protected characteristics and
promote appropriate messages via social
messages and intranet

Timing
2021/2 and
ongoing

Review/refresh materials carried by
Citizen’s Advice van from an equalities
perspective
Develop RDC’s active participation in
Hate Crime Week

2022/3

2021/2

2022/3

2021/2
2022/3

Develop RDC’s active participation in
Safeguarding Week by

2022/3

Ensure EDI messages form part of the
publicity around any local election run by
RDC

2021 and
2022

Page 62

Measure
Hate crime incidence
incorporated into
data-sharing
Calendar in place for
remainder of 2021
and social media
activity programmed
Calendar in place for
2022 and social
media activity
programmed
Material produced
and in place
Plan in place for
October week and
delivered
Plan in place for
October week and
delivered
Plan in place for June
week and delivered
Publicity delivered
and equality measure
in place

4

Reinforce the requirement to map the
participation in public life by different
communities/protected characteristics in
emerging local government
reorganisation structures
Work with the police to incorporate
community cohesiveness into the local
Community Safety Strategy

2021/2

Mapping undertaken
by NYCC

2021/2 and
ongoing

Community
cohesiveness issues
identified and
incorporated into
strategy

Page 63

5

Action plan
Leadership and organisational commitment
Objective 4: We will signal the Council’s commitment to reducing inequality
by publishing our equality policy statement
Where we are now
•
•
•
•

Equality statement published in the Single Equality Scheme 2010-2013
Working approach on equality published on Ryedale District Council intranet
An HR policy on equality in employment is in place and published
The Council’s zero tolerance and speak out policies are in place and published

Development action plan
Activity
Refresh the equality statement, and
approve through committee

Timing
2021

Measure
Statement agreed

Continue to mandate the reading of the
equality statement for all staff and
utilize functionality of new Sharepoint
website to provide real-time tracking

2021

Socialize understanding of the equality
statement to staff internally via
intranet, managers’ meeting and staff
meeting cascade as part of enhanced
training offer (see later section)
Publish the equality statement on the
Ryedale District Council website

2021

Statement on new
Sharepoint intranet
with sign tracker in
place. All staff
report as read.
Materials available
and awareness
covered on agendas

2021

Statement on
website

Publicize the signing of the statement
via media/social media channels, using
as an opportunity to reinforce Council
commitment to equality
Address gendered language in all
Council publications, communications
and processes

2021

Media statement
issued; social media
publicity issued1

2021

All official
documents meet
non-gendered
language test

Page 64

6

Objective 5: We will reach out to partners in the voluntary and community
sector and wider community to build relationships, and provide an opportunity
for key issues to be raised
Where we are now
•

Links in place with the voluntary and community sector via direct relationships, Community
Connect and liaison through North Yorkshire County Council Stronger Communities

Development action plan
Activity
As part of the annual service survey, conduct
structured service issue conversation using
direct links with Ryedale protected
characteristic groups and key community
influencers (eg: Yorkshire East and Ryedale
Disability Forum; Scarborough, Whitby and
Ryedale Local Area Group of North Yorkshire
Learning Disability Partnership Board;
Ryedale Special Families, Malton Pride)
Invite public comment on the Equality
Statement and Action Plan with reach-out to
protected groups

Timing
2021/2

Measure
Meetings held;
service issues relevant
to protected
characteristics
identified and
communicated to
service leads

2021

Communications
issued; comments
incorporated as
relevant

Page 65

7

Objective 6: We will strengthen our processes to ensure that equality issues
are considered in decision-making
Where we are now
•
•
•

Equality considerations are a part of the committee/Council report template
An equality impact assessment template is available to all staff on the intranet
Gendered language is still used within the constitution and at Committee and Council meetings

Development action plan
Activity
The equality impact assessment template is
reviewed and refreshed
Guidance is produced for managers on when
an equality impact assessment is expected
and publicized via training and intranet
HoG ensures that all papers coming forward
for decision assess whether an equality
impact assessment is required and to push
back on any papers submitted that do not
have sufficient equality data

Timing
2021/2

Measure
New template in place

2021/2

Guidance in place

Ongoing

Completed equality impact assessments are
made publicly available on the Ryedale
District Council website

Ongoing

Annual equality report
includes figure on
number of
policies/strategies for
which an EIA was
produced
Assessments
published

Page 66

8

Objective 7: We will report on, and publicize, progress against our objectives
and equality action plan
Where we are now
•
•

Equality objectives are available as part of the 2010-2013 Equality Scheme, but these do not
reflect the Public Sector Equality Duty
The performance framework against the 2020/2024 Council Plan does not include reporting on
equality objectives, but are being further developed.

Development action plan
Activity
Equality objectives as set out in this Action
Plan are agreed
Activities, measures and milestones as set
out in this Action Plan are adopted and
picked up by Leads in their performance
tracking, and subsequently in the quarterly
performance report to committee
The Equality Scheme 2021/23 is published
on Ryedale District Council’s website
An annual report on equality progress is
published at the end of the 2021/22
financial year
An annual report on equality progress is
published at the end of the 2022/23
financial year

Timing
2021
2021

Measure
Committee agreement
in place
Quarterly
performance report
picks up relevant
measures

2021

Publication in place

2021/3

Report published

2022/3

Report published

Page 67

9

Action plan
Responsive services and customer care
Objective 8: We will refresh our procurement and commissioning processes to take account of the
diverse needs of clients, and ensure that provides understand the requirements of the public sector
equality duty.
Where we are now
•
•

The organisation’s Procurement Plan 2021/23 was recently refreshed to reference the Public
Sector Equality Duty
Procurement Plan 2021/23 references social value as a KPI

Development action plan
Activity
Procurement Action Plan is amended
to require an equality impact
assessment to be produced for all
tenders of £25k or greater

Timing
2021/2

Procurement Team to produce
guidance for all tenderers to ensure
public sector equality duty is
understood at point of tendering
Procurement Team to report on
social value for all contracts awarded
for £25k or greater in quarterly
procurement performance report

2021/2

Ongoing

2021/2 and
ongoing

Page 68

Measure
Action Plan
amended.
No of EIAs reported
in quarterly
procurement report
Guidance available
and part of tender
process
Social value
reported and
evidence of
improvement over
time

10

Objective 9: We will embed equality into service planning
Where we are now
•
•
•
•

Equality objectives are incorporated and tracked in our corporate programme
Equality issues must be considered as part of the committee/Council decision-making template
Full equality impact assessments are minimally used
Intranet sets out some general guidance around equality impact assessments and template for
conducting an equality impact assessment

Development action plan
Activity
Satisfaction questions on core citizenfacing services are incorporated into an
annual citizen survey (an expansion of
the current budget survey) to include
demographic/equality data

Timing
2021/2

Citizen-facing services are required to
take account of the survey feedback in
service planning, and demonstrate this to
senior managers in their elements of the
corporate programme
The complaints procedure is adapted to
collect equality data
The equality aspect of complaints is
reported as part of the annual equality
performance report

2021/2

2022/3
2021/2

2022/3

Guidance on setting of equality measures
and objectives is incorporated into
instructions for additions to the
corporate programme

2021/2

Page 69

Measure
Satisfaction
questions agreed
and incorporated;
benchmarked into
annual performance
report
Relevant areas of
corporate
programme includes
at least one equality
objective
Equality data being
collected
Report figures
available and
socialised to aid
service improvement
Report figures
available and
socialised to aid
service improvement
Guidance provided

11

Objective 10: We will increase and improve our systems for gathering
customer feedback and measuring satisfaction with our services
Where we are now
•
•
•

Annual budget survey includes some customer feedback and satisfaction data, but is limited
Some consultations undertaken in relation to specific services but not available centrally
Some customer feedback activity undertaken, but not a coordinated approach

Development action plan
Activity
We will develop the annual citizen
survey to meet broader organisational
needs

Timing
2021/2

We will extend publicity around the
annual citizen survey (longer period,
plus use of paid-for channels) in order
to increase response rates

2021/2

We will review current customer
feedback activity across core services
to evaluate its effectiveness, frequency
and adoption as part of service
improvement
We will clarify our approach to
customer engagement through an
engagement statement, publicized via
the intranet and staff meeting cascade
Ryedale District Council adopts digital
scanning techniques to collect
customer feedback on key topics
Ryedale District Council adopts instant
customer satisfaction feedback
mechanisms (effectiveness, courtesy)
on core citizen-facing services

2021/3

Measure
Citizen survey
includes broader
range of questions
to aid service
development
Campaign plan
developed and
delivered. Response
rates measured and
show improvement
on previous year.
Report presented to
SMB

2021/3

Engagement
approach in place
and cascaded.

2021/3

Tool in place and
delivering dashboard
insights to SMB
Housing, benefits
and customer
service utilizing
quick feedback tools
Satisfaction
measures reported
as part of quarterly
performance report

2021/2

2022/3

Page 70

12

Public consultations and their results to
be centrally logged with results
reported annually as part of the report
against the equality action plan
Public consultation results publicized
under publications scheme on Ryedale
District Council website

2021/2
2022/3
Ongoing

Page 71

Consultations
included in annual
performance report
Results publically
available

13

Objective 11: We will improve our ability to communicate with members of
the community who have special communications needs
Where we are now
•
•
•

The organisation has adopted the Sunflower Scheme which supports people with hidden
disabilities, and most customer service assistants have been trained in the implementation of
the scheme
Ryedale District Council has renewed its website to take account of accessibility legislation and
to meet AA accessibility standards
Digitally-hosted materials produced since January 2021 are accessibility compliant and can be
utilized with adaptive technology

Development action plan
Activity
We will publicize our approach to availability
of digital documents in alternative formats
via our engagement statement, on our
website, and to staff
We will define and adopt a corporate
position on translation availability across
frontline services

Timing
2021/2

Measure
Guidance available
and socialized

2022/3

We will work with an appropriate partner
(eg autism society) to introduce appropriate
visual support materials to help customers
with autism and learning difficulties in
interview situations
We will become a Dementia Friendly
organisation by adopting this training across
frontline teams

2022/3

Translation approach
in place and
understood. Use of
translation services
measured annually in
performance report
Visual materials
available in reception
and meeting rooms

We will extend awareness of the Sunflower
scheme and introduce sunflower branding in
the reception area to signify our
involvement
We will define and develop our approach to
supporting people with hearing difficulties
and deafness

2021/2

We will ensure adaptive technology is
available on our reception computers for
public use

2021/2

2022/3

2022/3

Page 72

Training delivered.
Measure of number of
dementia-friendly
staff incorporated in
annual report
Sunflower scheme
evident in reception
areas
Frontline staff trained
on support offered to
people with hearing
difficulties
Browse aloud
available

14

Action plan
Diverse and engaged workforce
Objective 12: We will improve our understanding of our recruitment and
workforce demographics against protected characteristics, and seek to
encourage successful applications from under-represented groups
Where we are now
•
•
•
•
•
•

There is functionality in the My View online HR system that we use (provided by North Yorkshire
County Council) to record limited workforce equality data, but completion rate is low and the
diversity picture is only partial
We have conducted a staff equality survey in 2021 to gather baseline data, but results are still
partial
A recently refreshed equality in employment policy is in place setting out the processes to be
followed for fair and objective recruitment
Family-friendly policies are in place to support employees requiring flexible working patterns for
child-care, caring or other family responsibilities
The recruitment service records equality recruitment data on a rolling six monthly basis but this
incorporated into reporting or planning
A workspace DSE assessment is mandatory for all members of staff, with a self-report
questionnaire to highlight any special requirements or adjustments that need to be made

Development action plan
Activity
We will launch an internal campaign to
encourage self-reporting on My View with
the objective of boosting completion

Timing
2021/2

We will report on recruitment equality data
as part of the quarterly performance report

2021/2 and
ongoing

We will include equalities statement in all
recruitment advertising

ongoing

We will train all recruiting managers in
unconscious bias

ongoing

Page 73

Measure
% of staff who have
completed, reported
in annual performance
report and showing
improvement on
current
Recruitment equality
statistics included in
report
Standard advertising
template includes
equality statement
Number of trained
staff reported in
annual performance
report

15

We will measure gender equality across
different grades

2021/2
2022/3

We will report annually on the gender pay
gap
DSE completions and adjustments will be
reported in to the Corporate Health, Safety
and Well-being Group, in order to have
oversight and flag potential disability issues

2021/2
2021/2 and
ongoing

Page 74

Numbers tracked in
annual equality
report, issues
identified and
resulting actions
identified
Report produced and
issues identified
Adjustments reported
and matters escalated
as required

16

Objective 13: We will develop and deliver a broader training offer for our
workforce to ensure that equality, diversity and inclusion, and its practical
application, is understood
What happens now
•
•
•

Online equality and diversity training is mandatory for all levels of staff and compliance is very
high
Equality training is included in the Member Support programme for Elected Members
(attendance is less than 100%)
The intranet includes information and materials to promote equality awareness and
understanding, including unconscious bias

Development action plan
Activity
Develop training plan relevant to different
functions within the council
Deliver training plan

Timing
2021/2

Measure
Training plan agreed

Ongoing

Attendance/knowledge
test figures reported as
part of annual
performance reports

Ensure Elected Members have opportunity
to train in equalities as relevant to their
role, and follow up on those who have not
yet participated

Ongoing

All EMs have trained

Page 75

17

Objective 14: We will raise awareness of our mechanism to support employee
health and well-being issues
What happens now
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The Council has a zero tolerance policy which is publicized on the intranet and on posters
throughout the offices premises
The Council has a 24/7 telephone employee assistance service for confidential counselling,
which is publicized via the intranet and all-staff emails, and at specific times
The Council has an occupational health service which is publicized via the intranet
The Council has an employee recognition tool that recognises positive work and demonstration
of corporate behaviours, as well as providing a mechanism for staff to share ideas for business
improvements
The Council has a well-being group which runs campaigns for employee well-being
The Council has RDC Connected, a closed social media channel just for staff for well-being
information
The Council has a staff handbook to support staff who are home working
The Council has a digital pledge to encourage positive behaviours around working digitally
The Council runs pulse surveys to increase understanding of well-being issues

Development action plan
Activity
We will regularly raise awareness of zero
tolerance and reporting mechanisms, health
assured and occupational health offers, and
the digital pledge with quarterly messages
through the intranet and weekly staff
newsletter

Timing
2021
2021
2022

Measure
Comms messages
distributed on BOB
and staff newsletter at
least once a quarter

2022
2022
2022

We will actively participate in “people”
workstream developments in local
government reorganisation structures

To end March
2023

We will support staff networks and groups
such as the Well-being Group and any others
that might form around protected
charactertistics

ongoing

Page 76

Staff feel informed
and supported on
LGR, measured
through pulse surveys
Groups are recognised
by management,
receive support in
terms of time to
attend meetings and
requests from groups
are considered in the
appropriate fora

18

Appendix 1
Engagement statement
Why public information and engagement is important
Ryedale District Council exists to serve its citizens, and to provide services and initiatives that meet
the needs of individuals and communities across the district.
•
•

We are accountable to you, so it is important that we provide you with information about what
we are doing on your behalf, so that you can form a view on what is happening, and challenge it
if needed
We believe that you are best-placed to tell us what works best for you, and that you have a key
role to play in helping us to shape our services and how they are provided. For that reason, it is
important that we provide ways for you to engage with us on the work we do as a council, and
give feedback on how things are working so we can improve where necessary

Our approach to providing public information and engagement
Providing public information
•

•

•

We will use a range of methods to provide information about Council decisions, services and
performance (eg our website, our Facebook and Twitter channels, local media, advertising
printed booklets and posters, online and in-person events, citizen newsletters)
We will take a “digital first” approach to communicating with the public, because this allows us
to reach out to the widest group of people within the resources we have available. However we
will always recognise that digital does not suit everyone, and we will make alternatives available
on request
We will make sure that our website meets accessibility standards and is suitable for use with
adaptive technology
Example: One of the priorities in the Council Plan is to create a sustainable, safe and clean
environment. We used our website, the local media and social media to tell the public how we
are saving 36 tonnes of CO2 emissions a year by putting energy-saving LED bulbs in footway lights
in Malton and Norton, to cut costs and help the environment.

Consultation
•
•
•

At least once a year we will consult with the public on how we spend the Council’s budget, and
generally on the services we provide. We will use your answers to help us to improve what we
do.
In addition to the annual consultation, we will actively seek out additional opportunities to
consult with citizens when we make significant changes to services, so that you can have a say
about what happens.
When we consult, we pledge to provide enough time for people to take part in the consultation
(this will not usually be less than four weeks), and to take account of the responses in our
decisions/actions.

Page 77

19

Example: We were considering changing the Council Tax Support Scheme so we launched a
public consultation to explain the possible options for change, and the advantages and
disadvantages. The results of the consultation were provided to Councillors so they could take
the views of local people into account when making their decision.
Involvement
•
•

Where relevant and practical, we will seek to involve communities directly in decision-making.
This is the most interactive form of engagement, and allows citizens to have a far greater level of
involvement in shaping the services we provide.
When we involve people directly, we will make every effort to reach out to relevant hard to
reach groups in ways that are appropriate to them.
Example: We are taking a Place Standard approach to community service improvement in
Pickering. We invited people from all parts of Pickering to an event where they could say what
was important to them and how they wanted services to change. We also conducted a survey
(online and in-person) for people who couldn’t attend the event and reached out to young people
via a youth group and an online app.

Over-arching principles for engagement
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

We pledge to use everyday language and avoid technical jargon that can be hard to understand
We recognise the need to be inclusive in our communication and engagement, and we will
communicate and engage in a way that shows courtesy and respect for all citizens
We will be clear about the purpose of any consultation or involvement activity we undertake
with you, so that you know how your opinions will be used
When we consult and engage, we will be realistic about the level of discretion the Council has
over certain decisions, and how far citizens’ views can be taken into account
We will publicize the results of consultation and involvement activities on our website in a timely
way so you know what happened as a consequence of your engagement
We will co-ordinate our approach to consultation and involvement within the Council, and with
partner organisations if necessary, to avoid duplication and engagement fatigue
We will respect confidentiality and will operate in line with data protection legislation

How we will measure citizen information and engagement
•
•

•

We will incorporate engagement in our performance reporting structure
The annual survey will feature questions on:
o The percentage of people who feel confident they can access information about the
Council, its activities and services if/when they need it
o The percentage of people surveyed who feel they can influence decisions affecting their
local area
We will report annually (within two months of the end of the financial year) on
consultations/involvement activities undertaken and how the results were incorporated into
decision-making or planning

Page 78

20

Appendix 2
Equality reporting outline
Annual equality report
Understanding and working with communities
•
•

Commentary on data being published through community profile platform, partners engaged in
contributing and using data as part of decision-making
Engagement meetings held with protected characteristic groups as part of annual survey and
results of their feedback

Leadership and organisational commitment
•
•
•

Evidence of equalities featuring in internal communications/staff meetings
Number of standards complaints relating to equalities matters, comparison year on year
Number of equality impact assessments published

Responsive services and customer care
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Instant frontline customer satisfaction check statistics
Annual customer satisfaction survey data, by protected characteristics
Number of public consultations undertaken and results
Commentary on additional equality-related qualitative data resulting from digital platform
Number of complaints by protected characteristics
Number of equality impact assessments completed, as percentage of all new
policies/initiatives/tenders over £25k, year on previous year
Report status/progress against equality objectives incorporated into service plans
Commentary on social value in procurement and commissioning
Number of hate crime incidents per type, current year against previous year, with commentary
on actions taken to address
Activities undertaken in support of hate crime week

Diverse and engaged workforce
•
•
•
•
•

Attendance figures against all elements of the equality training plan
Recruitment equality statistics compared with district demographics, with commentary on gaps
and actions to be taken
Gender reporting against each grade, with commentary on gaps and actions to be taken
Gender pay gap information with issues identified
Figures on use of Health Assured and Occupational Health Service (read across from annual
health and safety report)

Page 79

21

Appendix 3
Equality Impact Assessment
Equality impact assessments are public documents. They are published on Ryedale District Council’s
website. If they form part of a decision to be made by committee or Council, the equality impact
assessment may also be published as part of committee/Council papers.
What is this EIA about?
Starting a new service

Changing existing service

Stopping a service

Briefly describe what is being proposed.
Why is this change necessary?
How will this proposal affect people with protected characteristics?
Characteristic
Make
Make
No
Describe the impact, referring to any
things
things impact information, consultation or involvement that
better worse
evidences your assessment
Age
Disability
Sex
Race
Gender
reassignment
Sexual
orientation
Religion or belief
Pregnancy or
maternity
Marriage or civil
partnership
Will the proposal affect anyone more because of a combination of protected characteristics? (eg
older women or young gay men) State what you think the effect may be and why.

Page 80

22

How will this proposal affect people who…
Live in a rural area
Have a low income
Have caring responsibilities
Do not have good digital access
If you have identified any adverse impacts, describe below what you will do to address them. If
no mitigation is possible explain why not.
What will you do post-implementation to check/address any unexpected impacts?
In this section, summarize: what information/consultation/involvement you have done and where
the results can be found, who will be negatively/positively impacted, and how you will minimize
negative impact. You should then use this para in your report to decision-makers under the
equality implications section
If your proposal is subject to agreement from a Committee or Council, please provide details of
when you expect it to be presented.
Name of meeting
Date to be presented at meeting
This assessment relates to an exempt item
YES / NO
Signature and name of proposer
Signature and name of Head of Function (if different)

What to do with this assessment when it has been completed:
•
•

Send the completed report to commsteam@ryedale.gov.uk so it can be publicized on the
website
Ensure you have used the summary section on any report you put to SMB, Committee or
Council. You should also include the URL link to the published report.

Page 81

23

Appendix 3
Training requirement
Session
Equality and
diversity basics
Equality and
diversity in service
delivery - live session
EDI for Elected
Members

For
All staff

Research feedback

All staff

Equality at RDC

Managers

Unconscious bias

Service leads and
all recruiting
managers
Service leads and
report writers
Mandatory for
customer service
and voluntary for
other services
Mandatory for
managers

Equality impact
assessments
Dementia Friendly
and Sunflower
Scheme
Creating an inclusive
culture – live session

Notes
Mandatory online e-learning session. (Already in
place).
Mandatory for citizen-facing services.

All staff
Elected Members

Mandatory session focusing on EDI as it relates to the
democratic role. Built into Member Support
programme.
Online video highlighting the results of the equality
research that staff contributed to earlier in 2021, and
what has been done in response
Segment at monthly manager’s meeting introducing
the new equality scheme and what it means for
services, the community profiling platform and
expectations around the EIA
Mandatory for all staff engaging in recruitment
activity and those conducting appraisals
Live online session to work through how to complete
the Equality Impact Assessment
Session on the role of these schemes and how to give
good service to people with neurodiversity needs
Appreciating difference, creating an inclusive
environment, zero tolerance in practice

Page 82

24

Agenda Item 9

PART A:

MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

REPORT TO:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE:

30 SEPTEMBER 2021

REPORT OF THE:

PROGRAMME
DIRECTOR
FOR
ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND PARTNERSHIPS
PHILLIP SPURR

TITLE OF REPORT:

PROGRESS REPORT ON THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE
CLIMATE CHANGE ACTION PLAN AND ASSOCIATED
PROJECTS

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To update the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on progress in delivering the Climate
Change Action Plan and projects and initiatives planned for the period up to September
2022.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

To note progress on delivery of the Climate Change Action Plan and future actions to
be completed.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

To continue momentum with the delivery of the Climate Change Action Plan adopted
by Council. The Council has set a target of achieving a net zero Ryedale by 2050.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

If timely action to achieve reduced carbon usage and emissions is not delivered, RDC
potentially faces a reputational risk as a commitment has been made and agreed by
Elected Members. Also, the longer it takes to reduce the carbon footprint of the area,
the bigger the negative impact will be to the environment. This has been highlighted in
various pathways within the recently published IPCC report.1 It is clear from the report
that the sooner changes are made to reduce carbon consumption, the lower the risks
will be of having to make bigger climate change mitigations, and the loss of life,
livelihoods, food growing potential and biodiversity.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 83

30 SEPTEMBER 2021

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The Climate Change Action Plan is in Appendix A. The plan sets out how Ryedale
District Council will play its part in reducing global temperature rise.

5.2

Members declared a Climate Emergency on 10 October 2019 and in line with the
government’s own legally binding net-zero targets as a minimum, committed to actions
to help achieve these targets across Ryedale.

5.3

A Sustainable, Safe and Clean Place is included under the “Our Environment” Priority
within the Council Plan that was adopted by Members in September 2020.

6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

The Action Plan is reviewed and delivered on an ongoing basis, supported by regular
Climate Change officer working group meetings.

6.2

Progress October 2020 to August 2021

6.3

A review of progress against actions within the Action Plan has taken place and the
Action Plan has been significantly developed. Highlights of progress made since the
last report in October 2020 include:




Appointment of a new Climate Change & Environmental Projects Officer
(CC&EPO), due to join RDC on 1st November 2021.
The surveying of RDC Owned Buildings to identify opportunities for Climate
Change related initiatives has commenced.
EV charging points have been installed:
 In the District
o 4 - Malton, Wentworth Street Car Park
o 4 - Kirkbymoorside, Town Farm Car Park
o 4 - Helmsley, Cleveland Way Car Park
o 4 - Pickering, Eastgate Car Park
o 4 - Pickering, Vivis Lane Car Park









RDC workplace charge points
o 4 - Ryedale House
o 4 - Streetscene Depot
o 2 - Coxwold House in Easingwold
December 2020-July 2021 EV charges undertaken - 1,508 with a CO2 saving of
over 21000 kg.
There has been a successful funding application through the Heat Network
Delivery Unit (HNDU) at the Department for Business Energy and Industrial
Strategy (BEIS) by Officers in partnership with Third Energy and the YNY LEP to
examine the feasibility of progressing geothermal heat opportunities. The sites to
further investigate the use of this technology and the benefits that can be achieved
are to be decided.
LED street lighting replacement programme has been completed for Malton and
Norton with 264 lanterns replaced saving 36,000 kg of CO2 per year.
Awarded LAD2 funding for home energy efficiency measures totalling £430,000.
Increasing walking and cycling infrastructure is being studied, with Malton and
Norton currently being focused on.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 84

30 SEPTEMBER 2021






The LGA Carbon Accounting Tool was used to benchmark and measure RDC CO2
emissions. The result for the 2018/2019 year (as this year indicates the council’s
emissions pre-covid) is stated below as Scope 1 (heating in RDC buildings and
RDC vehicle fleet fuel consumption), Scope 2 (electricity usage in all RDC
buildings) and Scope 3 (indirect emissions such as staff mileage, transmission and
distribution losses). It is proposed to target a CO2 emissions reduction of 5 % per
year based on the fulfilment of the actions within the action plan.
o Scope 1: 987080 kgCO2e
o Scope 2: 219390 kgCO2e
o Scope 3: 74740 kgCO2e
The Low Carbon Skills Fund has been applied for to enable the council to produce
heat decarbonisation plans for seven buildings.
Procurement has Carbon/sustainability considerations built into tender processes.

New Activity proposed from September 2021 to end September 2022

6.4

In summary, the following priorities for progress have been identified for the next 12
months.
Action

1. Action plan for the
electrification of the
streetscene fleet

2. Member and Officer
Carbon
mileage
reduction plan

3. Increase in
coverage

action Short term (next 3
months)
Medium term (next 6
months)
Long term (Next 12
months)
To assess when each of
L
the vehicles at
streetscene can be
replaced with electric
alternatives. If hydrogen
vehicles are required
when these will be in
place. The infrastructure
requirements and by
when should also be
included in the action
plan
Review recommendations
M
from the Energy Saving
Trust on Low Carbon
Staff Travel Plan and
assess with the
perspective of post-covid
working arrangements
Develop a plan to
L
increase canopy
coverage within Ryedale
Review and update the
L
Biodiversity Action Plan
To have grants in place
S
and funds distributed to
applicants
Summary
required

canopy

4. Biodiversity
Action
Plan
5. Grants for EV charge
points and carbon
reduction/climate
change mitigation

of

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 85

30 SEPTEMBER 2021

6. Circular Malton

Continue to work with
Circular Malton on the
viability of an anaerobic
digester in the area
7. Street lighting LED
Complete RDC LED
replacement
replacement works
across the district
8. Malton and Norton Malton and Norton cycle
cycle and Pedestrian and Pedestrian
Infrastructure
Infrastructure to be
assessed for additional
opportunities to
encourage more walking
and cycling within these
towns. Next steps to be
identified and progressed.
9. Street scene route
optimisation
completed

Refuse and recycling
routes to be optimised to
ensure carbon
consumption is as low as
possible
10. Mini recycling centres To refurbish the mini
recycling centres in the
area to encourage use
11. Geothermal heat
Continue
to
work
project
collaboratively with YNY
LEP and Third Energy Ltd
to
understand
the
feasibility of geothermal
heat in the area.
12. Strategic
A communication plan will
communications and
be created to engage with
community/partnership residents and businesses
engagement
in the Ryedale area to
inform and support, where
possible, the reduction in
their carbon footprint.

L

M

L

S

M

M

M

6.5

Significant progress has been made in delivering activity and achieving the actions of
the Climate Change Action Plan. It is anticipated that if the actions are fulfilled when
they are due, then there will be a carbon emission reduction of 5 % from that measured
for the 2018/2019 financial year, each year for the next 5 years. The emissions for
each financial year will be reported in the June following the end of that financial year.
This target is based on the assumption no additional assets will be purchased during
this time period.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
The climate change budget of £50k pa will be used to progress key activities such
as the grant schemes. If a project requires significant investment beyond the

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 86

30 SEPTEMBER 2021

available budget then a business case will be presented to members for
investment on a case-by-case basis.
b)

Legal
No specific legal issues are currently envisaged, however, if there are any they will
be addressed on a case-by-case basis.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
Staff participation in Working Group meetings and in working on actions in their
respective teams. All work conducted will be to improve the environment and
reduce climate change.

8.0

NEXT STEPS

8.1

The Corporate Working Group will continue to meet quarterly to review and support
Ryedale District Council to deliver the Climate Change Action Plan.

Programme Director for Economic Development, Business and Partnerships
Phillip Spurr
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Emma Garvey – Business Transformation Lead
07435 934 958
emma.garvey@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
Appendix A Climate Change Action Plan
Background Papers are available for inspection at:
1

An IPCC Special Report on the impacts of global warming of 1.5°C above preindustrial levels and related global greenhouse gas emission pathways, in the
context of strengthening the global response to the threat of climate change,
sustainable
development,
and
efforts
to
eradicate
poverty,
SR15_Full_Report_Low_Res.pdf (ipcc.ch), Accessed 9th August 2021.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 87

30 SEPTEMBER 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

2021 Climate Change Action Plan Update
September 2021

Status

Title

Description/Outcomes Responsible
to be achieved
Officer

Key Milestones and Notes

Completion
Dates

Outcome achieved

Building and Assets
Surveys on RDC buildings to be conducted (cost and carbon saving for
suggested EPC/DEC work)
October 2021
Scoping

Page 89

Delivery

To reduce the amount of
Decarbonisation
carbon consumed by
of identified
specifically chosen
RDC buildings
buildings.

Calculation of
carbon
consumption of
RDC buildings
and operations

To reduce the carbon
footprint of RDC by 5 %
each year

CCO/PFM

EDBPO

Carbon reduction vs cost evaluation to be conducted

November 2021

Preparatory work conducted in anticipation of building improvements

November 2021

Funding bid to be submitted to next round of ‘Public Sector
Decarbonisation Fund’

tbc

Report on the carbon footprint of vehicles produced

October 2021

Report on the carbon footprint of Ryedale House and Depot produced

October 2021

Report on the carbon footprint of key service areas produced

November 2021

Annual Reporting each May

Ongoing

Note: these reports will then lead to the head of the respective areas
creating action plans to reduce the carbon footprint.

Delivery

Street lighting

Scoping

Malton and
Norton cycle

Replacement of
streetlights with LED
lights for RDC region

The streetlight replacement programme for Malton and Norton.

Completed

Action plan on the next area(s) to conduct this work to be produced

October 2021

PFM/CCO

Transport and vehicles
Malton and Norton cycle
and Pedestrian

EIO

Phase 1 assessment (assessment of potential routes) final report
produced

1

September 2021

The Malton and
Norton streetlight
replacement
consisted of 264
lamps being replaced
with LED’s and
results in a saving of
36 tonnes of CO2 per
year.

Status

Title
and Pedestrian
Infrastructure

Scoping

Delivered

Page 90

Scoping

Scoping

Delivery

Community
Transport
Electrification

Description/Outcomes Responsible
to be achieved
Officer
Infrastructure to be
assessed for additional
opportunities to
encourage more walking
and cycling within these
towns
Ryedale Community
Transport feasibility
study into potential EV
services for Malton and
Norton

Malton-Pickering Creation of a Malton to
Cycleway
Pickering Cycleway

Malton Bus & Rail
Public Transport Forecourt / Interchange
area improvements

Malton station potential
Public Transport platform and access
improvements

Installation of
Public/RDC workplace
Electric Vehicle car park electric charge
Charging Points points

EIO/PDEDBP

EIO

EDM/EIO

EIO/PDEDBP

TDO

Key Milestones and Notes

Completion
Dates

Phase 2 assessment (route selection, option development, cost
estimates and economic appraisals considered) final report produced

November 2021

Delivery of chosen routes to commence

Summer 2022

Initial feasibility into a Malton and Norton electric bus service in the
area conducted

Completed

Outcome achieved

NYCC support of a Malton and Norton electric bus service investigated October 2021
Malton to Pickering cycle path (12 miles) completed

October 2021

Submission of a bid for Community Renewal Fund money to develop
ideas for improving the area between the Rail and Bus Station in
Malton

July 2021

Complete procurement of consultants ‘at risk’

October 2021

Decision on funding bid

October 2021

Appoint consultants

November 2021

Evaluate Study and potential future capital funding bid

March 2022

Bid submitted.

Funding bid to be submitted as part of a Levelling Up Round 2 package
spanning Thirsk, Malton and Seamer rail stations.
Submission of Levelling up Round 2 bid
tbc
External charge point installation completed:
20 Fast charging electric vehicle points now in the district
4 - Malton Wentworth Car Park
4 - Kirkbymoorside Town Farm Car Park
4 - Helmsley Cleveland Way Car Park
4 - Pickering Eastgate Car Park
4 - Pickering Vivis Lane Car Park
RDC workplace charge points
4 - Ryedale House
4 - Streetscene Depot
2 - Coxwold House in Easingwold

2

Public car park
electric charging
points are installed,
an audit of car
parking signage is
underway to ensure
clarity in regards to
access and use.

October 2021

Coxwold House
workplace charge
point requires
negotiations between

Status

Title

Description/Outcomes Responsible
to be achieved
Officer

Key Milestones and Notes

Completion
Dates

Information on the charging points circulated to employees and press
release published
October 2021
Measure current electric vehicle charge point usage and assess
potential new EV charge point locations/additional EV charge points at
current locations
December 2021

Report to SMB
If agreed, installation of further electric vehicle charging points

Scoping

Transport/
vehicles

Electrification of
streetscene fleet

SM

Page 91

Delivery

Transport/
vehicles

Streetscene route
optimisation to reduce
carbon consumption

SM

Scoping

Reduce officer
carbon mileage

Electric vehicle pool car
requirement scoped

CCO

Scoping

Reduce Member
Promote initiatives to
and Officer
reduce carbon mileage
carbon mileage

CCO

January 2021
June 2022

Streetscene fleet electrification action plan produced

October 2021

Completion of a 4 year phased transition from diesel vans (9)
to electric vehicles

June 2024

Refuse, garden waste and commercial waste bin lorries to have
electric lifters

October 2021

Replacement of 2 engine sweeper with 1 engine alternative

October 2021

Streetscene route (both refuse and recycling) optimisation completed

December 2021

Feasibility assessment to identify approach completed

November 2021

Confirm way forward

January 2022

Feasibility assessment to identify initiatives to reduce mileage
completed

October 2021

Confirm way forward

November 2021

RDC Operations

Delivery

Home energy
efficient
measures

To reduce carbon
consumption in 200
households by 2023
through grants and loans

EHO

Ryedale LAD 2 – a minimum of 35 energy inefficient homes upgraded
with the LAD2 allocation through insulation and low carbon heating
measures.

December 2021

Ryedale Energy Efficiency Grant – 10 energy efficiency measures in
place from ring-fenced council capital.

May 2023

3

Outcome achieved
Coxwold House and
Northern Powergrid
prior to go live.

Status

Title

Description/Outcomes Responsible
to be achieved
Officer

Key Milestones and Notes
3 energy efficiency measures in place from the ring-fenced council
capital

Completion
Dates

Outcome achieved

May 2022

ECO – 10 households benefited from ECO funding from YES Energy
Solutions blended with RDC council grants and loans.
May 2023
3 households benefitted from ECO funding

May 2022

Warm Homes Fund – Air Source Heat Pumps – 50 ASHPs to be delivered December 2021

Scoping

Page 92

Scoping

Home carbon
consumption
reduction (LAD3
and HUG1 home
efficiency grant
application)

To reduce carbon
consumption in the
district through focusing
on low income home
owners/ occupiers of
homes with a EPC rating
of E, F and G.

PRS
Enforcement Bid
Energy
Efficiency
(Private Rented
Property)(Engla
nd & Wales)
Regulations
2015

To develop or expand
effective compliance and
enforcement activity in
relation to private rented
property with EPC rating
of F & G.

Procurement
Completed and
Commissioning

Delivery

Carbon
Assessments

Influence suppliers and
build into new service
specifications the
requirement to
contribute to Climate
Change reduction.

Carbon assessments
undertaken for all capital
investment projects

EHO

EHO

Expression of interest for funding submitted

June 2021

Delivery of improvements completed

2022/2023

Consortium funding bid submitted

July 2021

Delivery of project

March 2022

The carbon footprint of the supply chain must be measured and
considered in tender exercises.

April 2021

Carbon accounting approach used for all future capital investment
projects

December 2021
onwards

CPO

All relevant
project
managers

4

Submitted.

Bid submitted.

The procurement
process includes the
consideration of
carbon footprint. The
procurement plan
2021-2023 states the
council commitments
to sustainability and
the environment and
how the procurement
process will work to
fulfil them.

Description/Outcomes Responsible
to be achieved
Officer

Status

Title

Delivery

Promotion and
implementation
of Ryedale Plan
sustainability
policies in all
new
development
opportunities

Evidence the promotion
and implementation of
Ryedale Plan
sustainability policies in
all new development
opportunities.

PO

Delivery

Paper usage

To reduce paper usage
through an online
election staffing portal

Scoping

Paper usage

To assess the feasibility
of e-billing for council
tax and housing benefit

Waste and
recycling

To increase recycling at
mini recycling centres
within Ryedale by 10 %
by end of 2023

Page 93

Delivery

Scoping

Waste and
recycling

Consultations to increase
recycling to over 90 %
by end 2026 for some
materials.

Key Milestones and Notes

Completion
Dates

All major residential development schemes to have EV charging
facilities

December 2021

All new dwellings to have EV charging facilities

December 2023

New building regulation standards received

December 2022

Local plan adoption

June 2023

CGO

Portal to go live

March 2022

RBM

E-billing solution to be evaluated including the paper usage and
carbon footprint calculated for the current billing scenario

November 2021

Assessed each mini recycling centre for work required

September 2021

Work conducted on the centres

February 2022

Communication campaign launched for recycling at the centres

March 2022

WRO

WRO

Outcome achieved

Assessments
completed.

To produce a report on each of the following consultations detailing
the impact on Ryedale council, residents and businesses and the work
required to implement the changes to achieve the required increase in
recycling performance

Extended Producer Responsibility

Deposit Return Scheme
October 2021

Consistency in collections

Council leadership (policy/partnerships with public, private, voluntary sectors and Ryedale Environmental sectors and residents

Scoping

Engagement of
employees and
the local
community and
businesses

To communicate to
employees and the
Ryedale community
including businesses the
importance of living a
sustainable lifestyle and
how this can be done

All

Communication action plan created

October 2021

Communication plan delivery commences

November 2021

Building links with local environmental groups

Ongoing

5

Status

Scoping

Scoping

Page 94

Ongoing

Scoping

Delivery

Scoping

Title

Grant funding
for community
groups to
reduce carbon
consumption

Description/Outcomes Responsible
to be achieved
Officer

To support community
groups to move towards
greener alternatives

To increase the
Local Area
generation of energy in
Energy Planning
the local area

Carbon
Abatement
Pathway

Climate change
reduction and adapting
practices to reduce
impact

Anaerobic
Digestion

To have an anaerobic
digester in place to
reduce carbon use

Increasing the
number of EV
charge points at
community
buildings

Northern Forest

To double the amount of
EV charging points at
community buildings in
Ryedale

Increase the number of
trees in the Ryedale area

CCO

Key Milestones and Notes
Grant scheme with award criteria agreed

August 2021

Communication of grant availability to small businesses and
community groups

September 2021

Grants allocated to initiatives

February 2022

Installation of changes

March 2022
onwards

Report completed on the potential local energy generation from
existing assets for the Ryedale region
CCO/PO/PDM Outcome of the LEP bid for Community Renewal Funding to research
defined assets and technology for local energy generation

CCO

PDEDBP

EDBPO

TLO/CCO

Completion
Dates

Agreed by SMB.

December 2021
March 2022

Next steps determined

April 2022

Work collaboratively with the LEP, other councils and residents to
reduce carbon usage within Ryedale

Ongoing

Communication plan created to encourage lower carbon usage

October 2021

Detailed feasibility, including site selection completed

September 2022

RDC role in the scheme to be determined

September 2022

EV charging point at Hovingham village hall car park operational

Complete

Grant scheme to support charging point installation agreed

August 2021

Communication of grant availability to community groups

September 2021

Grants allocated to initiatives

February 2022

Installation of charging points

March 2022
onwards

Feasibility of RDC’s role in this project identified

July 2021

Action plan created based on this role

October 2021

6

Outcome achieved

Agreed by SMB.

RDC to be a
facilitator and assist
others, where
possible, with tree
planting.

Status

Scoping

Title

Geothermal
energy

Description/Outcomes Responsible
to be achieved
Officer
Potential partnership
with Third Energy for
generation of geothermal
energy within Ryedale
to increase the amount
of non-carbon fuel use

EDM

Scoping

Solar farm
opportunity
investigation

To increase the amount
of non-carbon fuel use
within Ryedale

CCO

Scoping

Eco-tourism

Improve eco-tourism by
supporting tourism
sector businesses

TDO

Eco-tourism

Improve eco-tourism by
supporting 12 tourism
sector businesses by
creating sustainability
action plans in
partnership with the
University of York

Page 95

Scoping

Scoping

Scoping

Eco-tourism

Community Renewal Bid
submitted to increase
sustainability credentials
of tourism businesses
(Virtual Academy of
Regenerative &
Experiential Tourism)

Biodiversity
action plan

Biodiversity action plan
2007-2012 to be
reviewed and updated

TDO

TDO

CCO

Key Milestones and Notes

Completion
Dates

HNDU grant funding confirmed

June 2021

Scoping the potential usage, energy output and possible sites

October 2021

Report produced on the options for using this technology in the
Ryedale area (see LAEP actions)

December 2021

Communication plan in place to highlight ‘things to do’ in Ryedale to
encourage tourists to stay local

October 2021

Businesses identified

October 2021

Creation of action plans commenced

November 2021

Action plans completed

tbc

Community Renewal Fund bid shortlisted for approval

Complete

Funding confirmed, if successful

October 2021

Delivery of work commenced

October 2021

Work completed

March 2022

Action plan 2007-2012 Reviewed

November 2021

Action plan 2022-2027 Finalised

March 2022

Outcome achieved
Grant has been
awarded

CCO-Climate Change Officer, PFM-Property and Facilities Manager, EDBP-Economic Development, Business and Partnership Officer, EIO-Economy and
Infrastructure Officer, PDEDBP-Programme Director for Economic Development, Business and Partnerships, EDM-Economic Development Manager, TDOTourism and Development Officer, SM-Streetscene Manager, EHO-Environmental, CPO-Category Procurement Officer, PO-Planning Officer, PDM-Planning
and Development Manager, Corporate Governance Officer, RBM-Revenues and Benefits Manager, WRO-Waste and Recycling Officer, TLO-Tree and
Landscape Officer

7

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10

PART A:

MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

REPORT TO:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE:

30 SEPTEMBER 2021

REPORT OF THE:

HEAD OF CUSTOMER SERVICES AND COMMUNITIES
MARGARET WALLACE

TITLE OF REPORT:

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND SOCIAL CARE OMBUDSMAN
ANNUAL LETTER 2020/21

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To update members of the Senior Management Board on the contents of the Annual
Letter received from the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman for 2020/21.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

It is recommended that Members:
(i)
Note the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Annual Letter for
2020/21

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

Effective monitoring of the investigations carried out by the Local Government and
Social Care Ombudsman can identify trends and lessons to be learned from data
analysis to provide customer excellence.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

Failure to learn from the investigations carried out can lead to similar issues arising in
the future and decision notices issued against the Council from the Local Government
and Social Care Ombudsman.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The handling of customer complaints is linked to the ‘Our Organisation’ priority of the
Council Plan 2020-24 to be an innovative, enterprising council, we will transform our
customer service using ways to improve our responsiveness.

REPORT
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 97

30 SEPTEMBER 2021

6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) was formed under the
Local Government Act 1974 to remedy injustice through independent and impartial
investigations and to support the improvement of local services. The Ombudsman
investigates complaints from the public against English local authorities and adult
social care providers, as well as other public bodies such as national parks, fire
authorities, police and crime commissioners and other Government bodies.

6.2

A complaint will only be considered by the LGSCO if it has first been through the 2
stage complaints procedure operated by the Council. Stage 1 is for the complaint to
be dealt with by the service department, who are responsible for providing a response
to the complainant. If the complainant remains dissatisfied after receiving this
response, the complaint passes to stage 2 of the process, and is passed to the Head
of Service for investigation.

6.3

A further response is then sent to the complainant and they are advised that if they
remain dissatisfied, they should contact the LGSCO, who offer a free and impartial
service, to make a decision as to whether or not to investigate the matter further.

6.4

On an annual basis, the LGSCO issue an individual report for every authority setting
out details of the number of complaints received and the outcomes of their
investigations. These annual reviews are sent to all councils about their performance
in dealing with complaints made about them to the Ombudsman. However, in order to
allow local authorities to respond to the Covid-19 pandemic during 2020/21, the
LGSCO did not accept new complaints and stopped investigating existing cases
between March and June 2020. This reduced the number of complaints received and
decided in the 2020-21 year. This should be considered when comparing data from
previous years from Section 6.8. The report received for Ryedale District Council is
attached at Appendix 1.

Role of the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman
6.5

The LGSCO has a specific remit in terms of what complaints they will investigate. They
do not investigate every complaint received, for example, and they may decide not to
investigate if they think the problem has not affected the complainant significantly. In
addition, whilst they may provide advice and guidance to complainants, they generally
only investigate where the council’s complaints procedure has been exhausted.

6.6

In general, the LGSCO will look at complaints about things that have gone wrong, such
as:
i.
In the way a service has been delivered
ii.
If a service has not been delivered at all, or
iii.
The way a decision has been made that has caused problems for the
complainant. They do not question what a Council has done simply because
the complainant does not agree with it.
Examples might be if the Council:
i.
Took too long to do something
ii.
Did not follow its own rules or the law
iii.
Failed to meet expected standards of service
iv.
Gave wrong information
v.
Did not tell a complainant that they had a right of appeal against a decision, or

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 98

30 SEPTEMBER 2021

vi.

Took a decision in the wrong way, such as,
o not taking all the relevant information into account
o taking into account irrelevant information or
o not following our own procedures properly.

Examples of the problems this has caused for the complainant might be if they:
i.
Did not get a service or benefit they were entitled to or there was a delay before
it was received
ii.
Suffered financial loss,
iii.
Were put to a lot of avoidable expense, trouble or inconvenience.
6.7

The LGSCO will not normally investigate a complaint if they consider that the
complainant has not suffered significant personal injustice, or if the Council has
already taken, or is willing to take, satisfactory action to resolve it.

6.8

As part of the improvements made to the complaints handling process at the council
during this period and into the 2021/22 reporting year, the LGSCO carried out two
training sessions with Ryedale staff on ‘Effective Complaints Handling’. These
sessions were attended by staff across the council to embed the new complaints
procedure and develop good practice based on the advice of the Ombudsman.

Annual Letter 2020-21
6.9

To allow local authorities to respond to the Covid-19 pandemic, the LGSCO did not
accept new complaints and stopped investigating existing cases between March and
June 2020. This reduced the number of complaints received and decided in the 202021 year. Please consider this when comparing data from previous years.

6.10

The Annual Letter for Ryedale District Council (attached at Appendix 1) shows that
from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021, no detailed investigations were undertaken
following initial enquiries into the two complaints received. The two complaints were
from the following service areas:
Category
Housing
Corporate and Other
Services

6.11

Decided
Decision
17 July 2020
Closed after initial enquiries
30
October Closed after initial enquiries
2020

As the table above shows, both of the complaints received by the LGSCO were closed
after initial enquiries. In order to allow comparison against previous years, the Annual
Letters are broken down as follows:
Number of Complaints/Enquiries received by the Local Government Ombudsman and
Service breakdown
2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

Benefits & Tax

1

1

1

-

-

-

Corporate &
Other Services

-

1

1

2

1

1

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 99

30 SEPTEMBER 2021

Environmental
Services

2

1

2

-

1

-

Housing

-

-

2

1

1

1

Planning &
Development

3

2

5

5

4

-

Total

6

5

11

8

7

2

Number of Complaints/Enquiries about Ryedale District Council subject to detailed
investigation

Year

Number of
Complaints /
Enquiries
received by the
Ombudsman

Progressed
to detailed
investigation
stage

Upheld
decisions

Not
Upheld

2020/21
2019/20
2018/19
2017/18
2016/17
2015/16

2
7
8
11
5
6

0
1
3
1
1
2

0
1
1
0
0
0

0
0
2
1
1
2

Percentage
of upheld
decisions
subject to
detailed
investigation
(%)
0%
100%
33.33%
0%
0%
0%

6.12

Comparative information across North Yorkshire Councils shows that Ryedale District
Council along with Richmondshire District Council were the only two Councils that did
not have cases that progressed to detailed investigation stage as shown in (Appendix
2).

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
None
b)

Legal
None

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
None

Margaret Wallace
Head of Customer Services and Communities
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Jenny Knowles
01653 600666 ext: 43231
jenny.knowles@ryedale.gov.uk

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 100

30 SEPTEMBER 2021

Reference

Authority

20000617 Ryedale District Council
20005329 Ryedale District Council

Page 101

Category

Received

Housing
Corporate & Other Services

29 Jun 2020
24 Sep 2020

Page 102

21 July 2021
By email
Ms Burlet
Chief Executive
Ryedale District Council
Dear Ms Burlet
Annual Review letter 2021
I write to you with our annual summary of statistics on the decisions made by the Local
Government and Social Care Ombudsman about your authority for the year ending
31 March 2021. At the end of a challenging year, we maintain that good public administration is
more important than ever and I hope this feedback provides you with both the opportunity to reflect
on your Council’s performance and plan for the future.
You will be aware that, at the end of March 2020 we took the unprecedented step of temporarily
stopping our casework, in the wider public interest, to allow authorities to concentrate efforts on
vital frontline services during the first wave of the Covid-19 outbreak. We restarted casework in
late June 2020, after a three month pause.
We listened to your feedback and decided it was unnecessary to pause our casework again during
further waves of the pandemic. Instead, we have encouraged authorities to talk to us on an
individual basis about difficulties responding to any stage of an investigation, including
implementing our recommendations. We continue this approach and urge you to maintain clear
communication with us.
Complaint statistics
This year, we continue to focus on the outcomes of complaints and what can be learned from
them. We want to provide you with the most insightful information we can and have focused
statistics on three key areas:
Complaints upheld - We uphold complaints when we find some form of fault in an authority’s
actions, including where the authority accepted fault before we investigated.
Compliance with recommendations - We recommend ways for authorities to put things right
when faults have caused injustice and monitor their compliance with our recommendations.
Failure to comply is rare and a compliance rate below 100% is a cause for concern.

Page 103

Satisfactory remedy provided by the authority - In these cases, the authority upheld the
complaint and we agreed with how it offered to put things right. We encourage the early resolution
of complaints and credit authorities that accept fault and find appropriate ways to put things right.
Finally, we compare the three key annual statistics for your authority with similar types of
authorities to work out an average level of performance. We do this for County Councils, District
Councils, Metropolitan Boroughs, Unitary Councils, and London Boroughs.
Your annual data will be uploaded to our interactive map, Your council’s performance, along with a
copy of this letter on 28 July 2021. This useful tool places all our data and information about
councils in one place. You can find the decisions we have made about your Council, public reports
we have issued, and the service improvements your Council has agreed to make as a result of our
investigations, as well as previous annual review letters.
I would encourage you to share the resource with colleagues and elected members; the
information can provide valuable insights into service areas, early warning signs of problems and
is a key source of information for governance, audit, risk and scrutiny functions.
As you would expect, data has been impacted by the pause to casework in the first quarter of the
year. This should be considered when making comparisons with previous year’s data.
Supporting complaint and service improvement
I am increasingly concerned about the evidence I see of the erosion of effective complaint
functions in local authorities. While no doubt the result of considerable and prolonged budget and
demand pressures, the Covid-19 pandemic appears to have amplified the problems and my
concerns. With much greater frequency, we find poor local complaint handling practices when
investigating substantive service issues and see evidence of reductions in the overall capacity,
status and visibility of local redress systems.
With this context in mind, we are developing a new programme of work that will utilise complaints
to drive improvements in both local complaint systems and services. We want to use the rich
evidence of our casework to better identify authorities that need support to improve their complaint
handling and target specific support to them. We are at the start of this ambitious work and there
will be opportunities for local authorities to shape it over the coming months and years.
An already established tool we have for supporting improvements in local complaint handling is
our successful training programme. During the year, we successfully adapted our
face-to-face courses for online delivery. We provided 79 online workshops during the year,
reaching more than 1,100 people. To find out more visit www.lgo.org.uk/training.
Yours sincerely,

Michael King
Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman
Chair, Commission for Local Administration in England

Page 104

Ryedale District Council
For the period ending: 31/03/21

Complaints upheld

The Ombudsman carried out no detailed investigations during this period

Compliance with Ombudsman recommendations

100%

In 100% of cases we were
satisfied the authority had
successfully implemented our
recommendations.

Statistics are based on a total of 1
compliance outcome for the period
between 1 April 2020 to 31 March
2021

This compares to an average of
100% in similar authorities.

•

Failure to comply with our recommendations is rare. An authority with a compliance rate below 100% should
scrutinise those complaints where it failed to comply and identify any learning.

Satisfactory remedy provided by the authority

The Ombudsman did not uphold any detailed investigations during this period

NOTE: To allow authorities to respond to the Covid-19 pandemic, we did not accept new complaints and stopped
investigating existing cases between March and June 2020. This reduced the number of complaints we received
and decided in the 20-21 year. Please consider this when comparing data from previous years.

Page 105

This page is intentionally left blank

RDC Forward Plan

Date of Meeting

Committee

A/B

Service Area

Report Title

Draft
Deadline

Final
Deadline

Timetable of Meetings
20222023

29-Sep-21

Draft
Press
Release

Implement
Date

Full
Council

Reporting
Officer

Annual
Y/N

12-Oct-21

SC

Y

29-Sep-21

12-Oct-21

AH

Y

29-Sep-21

12-Oct-21

Veritau

Y

29-Sep-21

12-Oct-21

Veritau

Y

May
June
July
August
September

Page 107

October
21-Oct-21

21-Oct-21
21-Oct-21

Corporate
Governance
Au

Financial Services

Au

Financial Services

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Financial Services

Au

Financial Services

External Audit Annual Audit
Letter 2020/21

29-Sep-21

12-Oct-21

AH

Y

Au

Financial Services

External Audit Annual Fee
Letter 2021/22

29-Sep-21

12-Oct-21

AH

Y

Au

Financial Services

29-Sep-21

12-Oct-21

AH

Y

21-Oct-21
Overview and
Scrutiny Committee
21-Oct-21
Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

21-Oct-21

Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee
Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

First Internal Audit and Counter
Fraud Progress Reports
2021/22
Update of Internal Audit Charter

Annual Governance Statement

Agenda Item 11

21-Oct-21

OS
Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

21-Oct-21

Au

Financial Services

Treasury Management Mid
Year Review

29-Sep-21

12-Oct-21

AH

Y

OS

Customer Services

Customer Complaints and
Compliments Q2 2021/22

27-Oct-21

09-Nov-21

JK

Y

Au

Financial Services

Second Internal Audit and
Counter Fraud Progress
Reports 2021/22

29-Dec-21

11-Jan-22

AH

Y

Au

Financial Services

Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 Consultation

29-Dec-21

11-Jan-22

AH

Y

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Financial Services

29-Dec-21

11-Jan-22

AH

Y

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee
Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

29-Dec-21

11-Jan-22

SC

Y

Treasury Management Strategy
Statement and Investment
Strategy 2022-23

29-Dec-21

11-Jan-22

AH

Y

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

November
18-Nov-21
Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

December
January
20-Jan-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

20-Jan-22

Page 108

20-Jan-22
20-Jan-22
20-Jan-22

17-Feb-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

External Audit Plan
Update on the use of RIPA

B

Corporate
Governance
Financial Services

OS

Customer Services

Customer Complaints and
Compliments Q3 2021/22

19-Jan-22

01-Feb-22

JK

Y

OS

Customer Services

Safer Ryedale and Community
Safety Plan

02-Mar-22

15-Mar-22

BS

Y

11-Jan-22

17-Feb-22

Council

February
10-Feb-22
Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

March
24-Mar-22
Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

2 of 3

24-Mar-22

OS

Financial Services

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee
24-Mar-22

24-Mar-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Economic
Development,
Business and
Partnerships
Corporate
Governance

CIPFA Financial Management
Code

02-Mar-22

15-Mar-22

AH

Y

Progress Report on the
Implementation of the Climate
Change Action Plan and
Associated Projects

02-Mar-22

15-Mar-22

AT

Y

02-Mar-22

15-Mar-22

SC

Y

30-Mar-22

12-Apr-22

SC

Y

30-Mar-22

12-Apr-22

AH

Y

Risk Management Update

April
21-Apr-22

OS
Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

21-Apr-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

21-Apr-22

Corporate
Governance

Page 109

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

External Audit Progress Report

Au

Financial Services

Au

Financial Services

Third Internal Audit and Counter
Fraud Progress report

30-Mar-22

12-Apr-22

AH

Y

Au

Financial Services

Internal Audit and Counter
Fraud Governance Plans
2022/23

30-Mar-22

12-Apr-22

AH

Y

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee
21-Apr-22

Standards Complaints Overview
and Annual Report

3 of 3

This page is intentionally left blank

Public Document Pack

Agenda Item 13

Policy and Resources Committee
Held at Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton
on Thursday 29 July 2021
Present
Councillors Joy Andrews, Paul Andrews (Substitute), Arnold, Clark (Chairman), Delaney,
Docwra, Duncan, Frank, Graham and Di Keal (Vice-Chairman)
Overview & Scrutiny Committee Observers: Councillor Oxley
In Attendance
Stacey Burlet, Simon Copley, Anton Hodge, Emma Lawer, Marie Lomax, Phillip Spurr, Ellen
Walker, Margaret Wallace and Louise Wood
Minutes

24

Apologies for absence
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Burr, Councillor P Andrews
substituting.

25

Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.

26

Minutes of the meeting held on 29 June 2021
Decision
That the minutes of the Policy and Resources Committee meeting held on 29 June
2021 be approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct record, subject to a minor
amendment to the wording of minute 15 – Chair’s Announcements, to read “Cllr
Duncan raised an email that had been issued to Group Leaders”.
Voting record
8 For
2 Abstentions

27

Chair's Announcements
There were no announcements from the Chair.

28

Policy and Resources Committee Forward Plan
The Policy and Resources Committee Forward Plan was received, and Officers were
asked to confirm that items for the meeting on 23 September 2021 were on track.
It was noted that the Employment Related Policies had now come off the Forward Plan
for 23 September 2021.

29

Government Consultations

Policy and Resources Committee

1

Page 111

Thursday 29 July 2021

The North Yorkshire County Council consultation on the Minerals and Waste Plan was
considered.
It was noted that an extension to the consultation deadline had been requested by
Officers. A vote was then taken on the following two options for proceeding in the
event that an extension was not granted:
i)
That an additional meeting of the Policy and Resources Committee be
held to agree a response prior to the close of the consultation;
ii)
All Members of Council be asked to send comments to the Head of
Planning to agree a response in consultation with the Chair of the Policy
and Resources Committee.
Voting record
1 Option i)
9 Option ii)
Decision
Policy and Resources Committee’s preferred approach is for North Yorkshire County
Council to grant an extension to the consultation on the Joint Waste and Minerals Plan
If this is not forthcoming, all Members of Council be asked to send comments to the
Head of Planning to agree a response in consultation with the Chair of the Policy and
Resources Committee.
Voting record
Unanimous

The HR Business Partner advised the Committee regarding the MHCLG consultation
on special severance payments.
Decision
Policy and Resources Committee delegates authority to the relevant Service Lead in
consultation with the Chair of the Policy and Resources Committee to respond to
Government Consultations after the widest possible consultation with Members.
Voting record
6 For
4 Against

30

Recommendations from the Grants Working Party Meeting held on 7 July 2021
Resolved
To exclude the press and public from the meeting for discussion of the following item 8
(Recommendations from the Grants Working Party Meeting held on 7 July 2021) as
provided by paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of Section 100A of the Local Government
Act 1972, as it contains information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the authority holding that information).

Policy and Resources Committee

2

Page 112

Thursday 29 July 2021

The public interest test has been considered and, in all the circumstances of the case,
the public interest in maintaining the exemption is considered to outweigh the public
interest in disclosing the information.
Voting record
5 For
5 Against
Chair’s casting vote – For
Decision
That the recommendations of the Grants Working Party held on 7 July 2021 be
approved.
Voting record
Unanimous

31

Minutes of the Flood Management Working Party meeting held on 8 July 2021
The minutes of the Flood Management Working Party meeting held on 8 July 2021
were received.

32

Minutes of the Livestock Market Working Party meeting held on 15 July 2021
The minutes of the Livestock Market Working Party meeting held on 15 July 2021 were
received.

33

Urgent Business
A request was received to consider the following item of urgent business:
The Council resolves to instruct solicitors who are experts in dealing with applications
for judicial review, to obtain a legal opinion from leading London counsel in regard to a
possible legal challenge of the decision to restructure local government in North
Yorkshire.
Following consultation with Members of the Committee, the Chair did not consider that
this item of business should be dealt with at the meeting as a matter of urgency by
virtue of Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972.

PART 'A' ITEMS - MATTERS TO BE DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS OR
MATTERS DETERMINED BY COMMITTEE

34

Changes to the Independent Group's Working Party Appointments
Decision
i)
ii)

To appoint Councillor P Andrews as the substitute on the Livestock Market
Working Party;
To appoint Councillor Thackray as the substitute on the Local Plan Working
Party, in replacement of Councillor Burr.

Policy and Resources Committee

3

Page 113

Thursday 29 July 2021

Voting record
Unanimous

35

Milton Rooms Grant Update and Business Case
Considered – report of the Programme Director for Economic Development, Business
and Partnerships
The Chief Finance Officer (s.151) confirmed that the funding proposed is not
considered to be a subsidy for the purposes of subsidy control.
Decision
i)
ii)

The proposed changes to the original works approved by Council in February
2021 are approved.
The business case for the budgeted £307,000 is accepted and the funds are
approved for release.

Voting record
Unanimous

36

Additional Capacity Funding Requests
Considered – report of the Programme Director for Economic Development, Business
and Partnerships
Councillor Duncan moved and Councillor Docwra seconded the following amendment:
That the decision be deferred to the meeting on 23 September 2021, to be
considered in the context of the wider capacity report.
Resolved
Upon being but to the vote, the amendment was lost.
Voting record
4 For
5 Against
1 Abstention
Decision
Committee notes that additional budgets will be used in 2021/22 to support the three
posts outlined in the report, and that a further report will be brought to cover funding for
future years, as part of the Financial Strategy.
NB – The proposed Project Management post for the Livestock Market is dependent on
the decision to proceed.
Voting record
5 For
5 Against
Chair’s casting vote – For

Policy and Resources Committee

4

Page 114

Thursday 29 July 2021

Recorded vote
For
Councillors J Andrews, P Andrews, Clark, Frank and Keal
Against
Councillors Arnold, Delaney, Docwra, Duncan and Graham

37

Treasury Management Annual Report 2020-2021
Considered – report of the Chief Finance Officer (s.151)
Decision
That Committee
i)
Notes the annual treasury management report for 2020-21; and
ii)
Approves the actual 2020-21 prudential and treasury indicators in the report.
Voting record
Unanimous

PART 'B' ITEMS - MATTERS REFERRED TO COUNCIL

38

Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring - Q1 2021/22
Considered – report of the Chief Finance Officer (s.151)
Recommendation
It is recommended that Council:
i)
ii)

Notes the contents of the contents of the report – including as updated verbally at
the Committee meeting
Notes the impact on reserves of current spending plans and that it is likely that
reserves will be fully spent by March 24 unless further savings are made. This
assumes that the Council will continue in its current form until at least that point.
If Local Government Review happened before then, there will be additional costs
arising from that which all councils will be expected to contribute to.

Voting record
Unanimous

39

HR Policy Revision - Local Government Pension Scheme Employer Discretions,
Family Leave Policy and Probation Policy
Considered – report of the Head of Human Resources
Recommendation
It is recommended to Council that the revised policies are agreed for implementation.
Voting record
Unanimous

Policy and Resources Committee

5

Page 115

Thursday 29 July 2021

40

Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.
There being no further business, the meeting closed at 10:00pm.

Policy and Resources Committee

6

Page 116

Thursday 29 July 2021

